
 

 

P-20 Council Meeting 

 
Tuesday, January 24, 2012 

10:00am – 4:00pm 

 

Video Conference Locations 

IL State Board of Education, JRTC, 100 W. Randolph, Suite 14-300 , VTEL Room 

IL State Board of Education, Alzina Building, 100 N. First Street, 3
rd

 floor, VTEL Room 

Call-in 866-434-5269#  Access Code  1722969# 

 

 

 Agenda 

 
10:00 IL School Report Card Bill Signing - JRTC, 100 W. Randolph, 15

th
 floor, Blue Room 

 

11:00  P-20 Council Welcome, Roll Call, and Introductions (del Valle) - ISBE, VTEL Room 

 

11:10 Approval of Minutes (del Valle)  

  

11:15 Discussion and Endorsement of the 2011 Annual Report (del Valle)  

 

12:00 Lunch 

 

12:30 ISBE presentation on the NCLB Waiver (Koch)  

 

1:00 Race to the Top 3 (RTT3) Briefing (Reisberg)  

 

1:30 Illinois Pathways Launch (Tyszko) 

 

1:40 IL Department of Employment Security (IDES) presentation (Director Rowell or designee)  

 

2:25 Update on Early Learning Challenge Grant (Smith)  

 

2:40 Grand Victoria Foundation and Local P-20 Councils (Anderson)  

 

2:50 Announcement of Lt Governor's Community College Report (Capoccia)  

 

3:00 World Education Forum Grant Opportunity (DeStefano)  

 

3:10 CCT Support for Finance and Governance Research (DeStefano) 

 

3:20  LDS Governance Structure (Reid) 

 

3:30 Committee Updates 

 

4:00  Adjourn 



 

 

       P-20 Council Meeting 

         Wednesday, October 26, 2011 

  10:00am – 4:00pm 

Illinois State Board of Education, 4th floor, Board Room, 100 N. First Street, Springfield 

Call-in 866-434-5269   Pass Code 1722969# 

 

Meeting Minutes 

Council Participants in Springfield:  Lizanne DeStefano, Ray Hancock, Erika Hunt, Michael Johnson, Joyce Karon, 

Deb Kasperski, Maggie Laslo, Brent Clark (for Gary Niehaus), Laurel Prussing, John Rico, Audrey Soglin, Julie 

Smith, Robin Steans, Deb Strauss, Chairman Miguel del Valle 

JELC Participants in Springfield:  Karen Hunter Anderson, Bob Blankenberger, Maria Capoccia, Dan Harris (for 

Diana Rauner), Elaine Johnson, Brenda Klostermann, Geoff Obrzut, Al Phillips, George Reid, Lt. Governor Sheila 

Simon, Linda Tomlinson, Jason Tyszko 

Council Participants by Phone:  Ron Bullock, John Luczak, Max McGee, Cynthia Plouche, Kathy Ryg, Paul Sarvela 

(for Fr. Dennis Holtschneider) 

I. Welcome & Introductions - Chairman Miguel del Valle called the meeting to order and took roll call.  
 

II.  Approval of Minutes  
Action Item:  Council approved October 26, 2011 meeting minutes without corrections or additions. 
 

III. Discussion of the New IL School Report Card - Robin Steans (Advance Illinois) 
 
Robin led discussion of the proposed new IL School Report Card (attached) beginning with the 
development process.  At the time of the meeting, Data, Assessment, & Accountability (DAA) had 
worked with Family, Youth, and Community Engagement had held nearly 60 community hearings 
and engaged over 40 stakeholder groups including parents, students, teachers, and administrators 
from across the state.  The Report Card Steering Group sifted through the proposed measures and 
used focus group feedback to identify which information was most relevant and useful.  Robin 
emphasized that the development of the new school report card had been an iterative process.  It 
was decided that elementary, middle, and high schools would each have their own report card.   

 
Deb Strauss and Kathy Ryg, co-chairs of FYCE Committee, spoke about the school report card as an 
opportunity to engage parents and community members.  They also noted that the revision of the 
document was well received in focus groups.   
 
Council discussed importance of training and public awareness campaign to accompany the roll out 
of the document to provide context for the revision and ensure understanding of process for 
developing the document and how measures were selected as well as the significance of the 



 

 

information communicated in the document with which all audiences may not yet be familiar.  
Steering Committee will stay intact to provide guidance during roll out effective 2013-14 school 
year.   
 
Robin discussed each section of measures and the metrics within each section highlighting new 
features of the SRC.  She explained that while the inclusion of some measures are dictates by law 
there was enough flexibility to include more meaningful outcomes driven measures as well as space 
for other information identifies as useful including a section for principals to highlight special 
programs, awards and recognitions, and unique partnerships available at the school.     
 
She responded to questions from the Council and observers.  Walter Taylor (Chicago Teachers 
Union) expressed concern over incorporation of evaluation until the tool is settled on.  Robin 
commented that focus groups consistently identified teacher as key factor in student success and 
therefore necessary to include.  Robin also acknowledged the evolutionary nature of the SRC which 
will adapt to accommodate the availability of new tools, measures, and data as it becomes available.  
Lastly, updated evaluation instrument should be in place by roll out of the new SRC under the 
timeline set in the Performance Evaluation Reform Act (PERA).  
 
She also noted that the hard copy which parents will receive is 1 page front and back however the 
electronic version features hyperlinked text and explanatory scroll over bubbles.  Additionally, there 
are 3 levels of detail provided online: 1 pager (snapshot), detailed report, and expanded data report.   

 
Moreover, there was discussion of how to better capture career readiness beyond college 
enrollment or completion namely military experience and industry recognized credentials or 
workforce experience.  Lastly, the Council discussed potential links to other resources such as the 
High School to College Success Report and expressed interest in a true P-20 report card which would 
include additional information on early childhood opportunities and higher education.   
 
Action Item:  Council voted to endorse the School Report Card Legislation 
 
 

IV. Discussion of Finance and Governance Committee Proposed Recommendations – Co-chairs Ray 
Hancock and Laurel Prussing 
 
Ray Hancock began by emphasizing the importance of finance and governance in supporting and 
sustaining the educational experience.  He also recognized the Council members who participate on 
the Committee.  He also highlighted the unique impact of local control in Illinois’ education system. 
 
Council reviewed and discussed Committee recommendations (attached).  Laurel Prussing (City of 
Urbana) acknowledged the political nature of recommendations in this area and highlighted the 
need for extensive discussion and public engagement in addressing these issues. 
 
Co-Chair Ray Hancock also noted that the Committee has had initial conversations with Ralph 
Martire of the Center for Tax and Budget Accountability regarding assistance with development 
finance model.  Ralph has years of experience in this respect and is currently serving on a national 
body addressing issues related to finance and education.  Committee is also in preliminary 
discussions with a reputable policy institute interested in helping design surveys to facilitate the 
discussion around state.   



 

 

 
Paul Sarvela mentioned Glen Poshard’s interest in 2+2+2 programs.  Council discussed potential of 
2+2+2 program which allows for dual credit enrollment where high school student can begin earning 
college credit before transferring to community colleges for 2 years to expedited the completion of 
an Associate’s degree before finishing out a final 2 years at a 4 year institution and earning a 
Bachelor’s degree.  Chairman del Valle remarked that with the support and coordination of state 
agencies and post-secondary institutions, this type of program increases the likelihood of 
completion for many students.   
 
Chairman commented that Council must generate innovative ideas and engage the public if it is 
going to make real change for Illinois’ students.  He also stated that the Council presents a great 
opportunity for collaboration and coordination among state agencies.  Lastly, he recommended 
bringing in experts to provide support around analysis and identification of best practice.   
 
Erika Hunt suggested that Committee mapping out most recent and relevant reform efforts from the 
many other groups who have broached these issues to provide context.  Additionally, it was 
suggested that a matrix of the landscape of current initiatives and a survey of research on the 
various approaches to governing and financing education would be helpful.   
 
Co-chairs were asked to elaborate on the role of existing state boards of education in the proposed 
framework and Ray stated that they would remain intact but with a re-envisioning of roles and 
authority.  Ray commented that Boards would act in more of an advisory than policy setting 
capacity.  Maria Capoccia (Lt. Governor’s Office) offered to hold further discussions with the 
Committee regarding specific programs of interest included in the Committee recommendations.  
George Reid expressed concern over the implications of the proposed recommendations.  He also 
cautioned the Council to recognize the work and progress that state education agencies have made 
in recent years as well as the increased coordination amongst agencies.   
 

V. Lunch Break 
 

VI. Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) Update – Linda Tomlinson  IL State Board of 
Education (ISBE) 

 
ISBE has formed a stakeholder group which has helped develop a growth model for Illinois’ 
application waiver. Chairman del Valle urged caution around commitments made in the waiver 
which, if approved, will read as a blue print for the State.  In particular, he expressed concern over 
the flexibility around use of funds.  Julie Smith (Governor’s Office) emphasized that Illinois is 
applying for a waiver from ESEA (NCLB) but approval is not guaranteed.   
 

VII. Dept. of Human Services (DHS) Presentation on Intersections with the P-20 Council – Secretary 
Michelle Saddler, Linda Saterfield – DHS Division of Human Capital Development and Child Care 
Bureau, Ivonne Sambolin- Jones – DHS Community Health and Prevention, Mary Beth Lauderdale 
– DHS School for the Deaf and Blind Rehabilitative Services 
 
The chair welcomed DHS and thanked them for helping to illustrate the links between social services 
and education in better serving Illinois’ students.  Secretary began by discussing the key functions of 
DHS: prevention, intervention, and treatment.  She went on to describe the programs operated out 
of DHS and allowed DHS staff to elaborate on the specifics of populations served, program 



 

 

components, and partners which include schools and community organizations.  Staff pointed out 
programs which provide before and after school care and educational opportunities, scholarship 
programs, and professional development opportunities for early childhood providers. 
 
Programs included domestic violence prevention and support, mental health services, substance 
abuse prevention and treatment, pregnancy prevention and parent training, child care, monetary 
and nutritional supports, and disability services.  DHS also noted the increased number of individuals 
and families needing services as a result of increased poverty. 
 
The Secretary highlighted funding challenges and importance of leveraging resources during difficult 
budget times.  DHS staff took questions and comments from the Council.  Maggie Laslo (SEIU) 
inquired about the extent of cuts the Department expects to incur.  Staff described blend of various 
federal funding sources as well as state general revenue funds.  The Secretary noted that DHS does 
not receive school formula funding for the schools they operate. 
 
Chairman del Valle asked DHS to describe their role in Illinois’ Race to the Top – Early Learning 
Challenge, a federal grant opportunity.  Linda explained that should IL be selected, the Quality 
Ratings and Improvement System would be expanded to include all early childhood providers and a 
public awareness campaign would be laid out.  Moreover, the early childhood professional 
development system would be expanded to improve additional training opportunities for the early 
care and education workforce.  Grant would also fund an age appropriate kindergarten assessment.  
The application is being jointly developed by ISBE and DHS. 
 
Chairman del Valle invited DHS to become committee members to share their perspective on issues 
affecting Illinois’ children. 

 
VIII. Classrooms First & Community College Tour Update – Lt. Governor Sheila Simon 

 
The Lt. Governor briefed the Council on the charge of the Classrooms First Commission which is 
identifying strategies for expanding high quality, efficient delivery of education.  The group is 
focusing specifically on issues of district consolidation and realignment options.   
 
She also spoke about her community college tour which helped her to better understand the 
challenges and successes of community colleges which often provide cost effective options to make 
students who need a flexible class schedule.  She highlighted a few examples of specific schools 
which run innovative programs including dual credit offerings to assist their students in meeting 
their educational goals whether transferring to a 4 year institution, continuing education, or 
acquiring an industry recognized credential.  Lewis and Clark was named as a good example for a 
dual credit program and Danville Area College has had success with their dual enrollment program.  
A clear area for concern is remediation, specifically around math.  The Lt. Governor’s Office will be 
releasing a report on her findings from the tour at the beginning of 2012. 
 

IX. Teacher and Leadership Effectiveness (TLE) Dashboard Presentation - Erika Hunt  
 
Erika updated Council on Committee’s process.  She noted that the Committee is up to 60 
stakeholders including Melissa DeBarolo and Jim O’Connor who have provided staff support.  She 
described process to identify performance indicators to be displayed in the dashboard which is 
based on collaborative, iterative survey to work towards consensus from indicators that emerge as 



 

 

group priorities.  Purpose of dashboard is three-fold - formative, summative, and provision of profile 
data.  Committee has one more survey phase.   
The next TLE meeting would take place in Bloomington on November 15, 2011 for those interested 
in participating.  They have worked with Chicago Public Schools Leadership Collaborative to pilot.  
Also in discussions about  
 
Erika described Teacher Leadership Endorsement. The Committee will be fleshing out draft 
indicators during tomorrow’s webinar.  She also noted that SB1799 was signed by the Governor.  
Tight timeline because Type 75 certificate (Teacher Leader Endorsement) will 2012 sunset and all TL 
endorsement programs need to be approved by ISBE by 2014.  Group is working quickly to assist 
ISBE during the rules process.  Goal is to provide a career path to retain high performing teachers 
and recruit them into leadership roles.  Committee reviewed national and international best 
practices around teacher leadership.  Recommendations will focus on parameters that ensure 
quality.   
 
Erika invited Council and guests to join upcoming meetings and took questions.  Based on questions, 
Erika explained that there are multiple pathways to becoming a teacher leader which is why defining 
parameters for endorsement is key to ensure quality preparation.  Ultimately, Committee would like 
to see programs tailored to market to those interested in specific leadership positions.   
 

X. School, College and Career Readiness Update- John Rico (Rico Enterprise) 
 

John reinforced purpose for building relationship between education and employers, emphasizing 

the importance of investing in students, our future workforce.    He began by noting that his 

committee strives to make actionable recommendations and invited Council members and guests to 

participate in SCCR’s next committee meeting on October 11, 2011 at DeVry.  He also provided 

additional meeting dates for November 8, 2011 and December 14, 2011.   

 

John discussed topics the Committee is considering including Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Math (STEM) programs, impact of student learning plans, work place learning, remediation, and 

drop-out rate.  Jason Tyszko (Dept. of Commerce and Economic Opportunity) described the 

evolution of the Committee’s work beginning with Bill Symonds’ Pathways presentation.  He made 

note of the framework and 7 goals set by the Committee.  He also highlighted specific projects the 

Committee is involved with including the Pathways Initiative which features STEM learning 

exchanges or partnerships between local schools and businesses to provide students with clear 

course paths, work experience opportunities, and ultimately an industry recognized credential.  

Other projects include incorporating workforce data into the IL Longitudinal Data System and 

implementation of Shared Learning Environment (formerly Learning and Performance Management 

System) which is a cloud based resource exchange.  The Workforce Longitudinal Data System which 

will be supported by a Dept. of Labor funding opportunity was also mentioned.  IL is submitting an 

application and the Committee is being engaged for input.  He also discussed the role of the 

Committee in gathering members of the business community to participate in the SRC feedback 

forums.  Committee intends to highlight opportunities for Council to add value within the context of 

the framework laid out by SCCR.   



 

 

XI. Family, Youth and Community Engagement (FYCE) Proposed Activities - Debra Strauss and Kathy 
Ryg 
 
In addition to the work with focus groups which provided crucial feedback to the School Report Card 
Advisory and Steering Groups, FYCE would like to work to develop a training tool to accompany the 
report card.   
 
FYCE has been involved with the IL Educational Opportunities for Military Children Council 
(IEOMCC).  The group consists of representatives from the IL’s military installations, districts serving 
the largest numbers of military children, and the P-20 Council.  IEOMCC had first meeting on 
October 25, 2011 and will focus on identifying challenges that military students encounter during 
transition to IL schools.  P-20 will assist with the coordination of stakeholders to resolve these 
challenges.   
 
Deb introduced the social emotional learning (SEL) resolution (attached), HR2437, introduced by 
Rep. Judy Biggert.  Resolution would be first piece of federal legislation to encourage all schools to 
integrate SEL into their curriculum to address the needs of students from a holistic and 
developmentally appropriate approach.   IL was the first state to adopt development and sequential 
SEL standards.  IL Children’s Mental Health Partnership in coordination with ISBE have worked 
diligently with schools to implement these SEL standards.  Students in SEL programs show academic 
gains of 11 points over students who are not involved in these programs.   
 
She offered it to the Council for endorsement. 
 
Action Item:  Council approved resolution. 
 
Deb also passed out parent guides to the Common Core.  There is a guide for each grade level K-8 
and one for high school.  The guide, produced by National PTA, provides an overview of new 
curriculum and features ways to support their students learning.  The document is also available 
electronically.  Documents are also available in Spanish.  Many principals would like to use them as 
tools during parent teacher conferences.   
 

XII. Legislative Update – Julie Smith 
 
Bills to be considered for veto session need to be introduced by tomorrow.  A measure to provide 
additional funds for MAP awards is moving forward from the House.   Number of students eligible 
for MAP has significantly increased and there is currently a short fall for the second semester.   
 
IL General Assembly might choose to not take action on anything involving appropriations until after 
January.   
 
Legislation which would authority over business proprietary schools from ISBE to IBHE for approval 
moved forward.   
 
HB605 passed the House unanimously the day of the meeting and is expected to move through the 
Senate unopposed.   
 



 

 

Julie also discussed the status of the gaming bill at the Chair’s request including concern over the 
portion of revenue which would come to the State from casinos. 
 

XIII. JELC and Coordinating Committee Activities 
 
JELC is moving forward on updating progress matrix of P-20 recommendations.  Draft will be 
provided at next meeting.   
 
a. Longitudinal Data Systems – George Reid (IL Board of Higher Education), Geoff Obrzut (IL 

Community College Board), Jason Tyszko (Dept. of Commerce & Economic Opportunity), John 
Sinsheimer (IL Student Assistance Commission) 
 
George provided a handout outlining the governing structure for the LDS and reviewed the 
newly created work groups.  JELC agencies will all be included in the governing structure of the 
ILDS.  These groups were formed based on recommendations by the Data Quality Campaign 
which include the formation of a policy board with stakeholder broad representation to address 
critical questions including whether or not students college ready, the extent of educational 
disparities, and the level of remedial education required.     
 
 

XIV. Discussion of Second Annual Report content – Lizanne DeStefano 
 
Lizanne asked committee chairs to submit progress reports and any updated recommendations.  She 
and Amber will work with co-chairs to pull these together into the second annual report for review 
at the following meeting.   
 

XV. Other Business 
a. IL Compact for Educational Opportunities for Military Children – Lizanne DeStefano  
 
Lizanne presented on the make-up of the group which will be focusing on challenges facing students 
of military children by transitioning into the IL education system.  Presentation attached. 
 
Lizanne also spoke about Iryna Kryshtopa, State Department Parliamentary intern assigned to the P-
20 Council.  She is leading professional develop of young professors at the university in her region of 
Ukraine.  She was especially interested in student learning plans.   

 
XVI. Adjourn 

 



SECOND ANNUAL 
REPORT OF THE 
ILLINOIS P-20 COUNCIL 

TO THE GOVERNOR 
AND LEGISLATURE

JANUARY 2012



• Maintained four priority areas aligned with 
committee structure:
◦ Transform the state education accountability 

system

◦ Provide a clear path to college and careers

◦ Develop and support effective teachers and leaders

◦ Engage families, youth and communities 
throughout the state

• Added a fifth priority 
◦ Provide adequate, equitable and sustained funding 

and sound governance



• Maintained 10 goals from strategic plan and 
added 11th for funding and governance

• Reported on 2011 progress 
◦ State agencies

◦ P-20 Council

• Identified “next steps” based upon committee 
recommendations

• Links to all committee reports will be 
provided in the on-line version of the report.

• Executive summary will be developed for wide 
dissemination.



Recommendation #1: Align Illinois’ student 
learning standards and assessments to reflect the 
knowledge and skills students will need for the 
21st Century. 

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION 
ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM



Next Steps:
To achieve true statewide alignment & implementation, 

Illinois must deploy sustained, intensive communication, 
professional development, and on-going support to local 
educators and vigilant monitoring of student outcomes in 
terms of increased student attainment, reduced need for 
remediation, and improved completion rates.

Illinois should reinstate writing as part of the state 
assessment

Illinois should undertake a comprehensive reform of 
Illinois Learning Standards and state assessments in 
areas not addressed by the Common Core.

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION 
ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM



Next Steps (cont.):
• As the Illinois Longitudinal Data System (ILDS) comes on 

line in 2012, Illinois should utilize the P-20 College and 
Career Framework to identify the core elements of a 
research-based definition of college and career 
readiness, issue specific policy and program 
recommendations to further align curriculum and 
accountability systems with this goal, and establish 
grade level benchmarks to assess whether students are 
“on track” for college or career. 

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION 
ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM



Recommendation #2: Develop a system of assessment of 
student learning that provides reliable measures for 
accountability and guides to improve instruction and 
student learning

Next Steps:
The state should develop empirically-based college and career 

readiness benchmarks for elementary, middle and high school for 
use in accountability and school improvement.

 Illinois should fund the development of high quality formative 
assessment items, samples of student work, examples of individual 
learning plans and other exemplars that reflect mastery of 21st

Century skills, Common Core State Standards and the Next 
Generation Science Standards as a means of acquainting teachers, 
families, and students with new expectations for learning at all 
levels, including early childhood and postsecondary. 

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION 
ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM



Recommendation #3: Develop an 
accountability system which will 
enable state and local education 
agencies, educators, parents, 
students, employers, researchers, and 
taxpayers to easily access and evaluate 
data about student learning, school 
climate, and financial expenditures in 
schools, districts, community colleges, 
and universities.

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION 
ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM



Next Steps: 
In preparation for the release, the P-20 Council should assist 

families and other stakeholders to understand and use the 
Report Card by disseminating informational materials and 
promoting statewide training networks. 

The P-20 Council should continue to monitor the 
development of these indicators and linkages between ILDS 
and the Report Card.

Illinois should support the development of state Report Cards 
for early childhood and postsecondary education.

State agencies (including IDES & IDHS), the General Assembly, 
and the Governor should continue to promote full 
implementation and use of ILDS and plan for its sustainability 
when federal funding ends.

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION 
ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM



Recommendation #4: Coordinate education and 
workforce data systems to improve career counseling 
and career preparation. 

Next Steps:
State agencies and the P-20 Council should continue to 

promote efforts to incorporate workforce and social 
service data into ILDS and develop public-private 
partnerships that support career exploration in all 
fields

PROVIDE A CLEAR PATH TO CAREERS



Recommendation #5: Enlarge the pipeline of diverse, 
high-quality candidates into teacher and leadership 
positions throughout the entire educational system.

Next Steps:
 Illinois should implement a long term, multi-faceted strategic 

plan for improving the quality and diversity of the pool of 
candidates for teacher and leadership positions including early 
engagement, recruitment, financial incentives, career ladders, 
and continuous development opportunities.

As soon as possible, Illinois should undertake a state-wide 
longitudinal study of teacher, school ,and preparation program

factors that predict teacher retention & effectiveness.

DEVELOP AND SUPPORT EFFECTIVE 
TEACHERS AND LEADERS AT ALL LEVELS OF 

THE P-20 SYSTEM



Recommendation #6: Improve training and certification 
for teachers and educational leaders in accordance with 
findings from research and pilot programs. 

Next Steps:
 ISBE should incorporate the committee’s recommendations into 

the annual teacher and principal program review process of the 
Illinois Educator Licensure Board. 

The P-20 Council and the Joint Education Leadership Committee 
should ensure that ILDS has the capacity to support formative 
and summative evaluation of teacher and leader preparation 
reform and impact.

DEVELOP AND SUPPORT EFFECTIVE 
TEACHERS AND LEADERS AT ALL LEVELS OF 

THE P-20 SYSTEM



Recommendation #7: Improve teacher evaluation and 
professional development for the entire education 
spectrum in accordance with findings from research and 
pilot programs. 

Next Steps:
 Illinois should fully fund sustained and extensive professional 

development and mentoring to create educational work 
environments that foster excellence and support professional 
growth for teachers and administrators.

DEVELOP AND SUPPORT EFFECTIVE 
TEACHERS AND LEADERS AT ALL LEVELS 

OF THE P-20 SYSTEM



Recommendation #8: Improve educational attainment 
through attention to prevention, intervention, and 
reengagement.

Next Steps:
The P-20 Council should ensure that the ILDS has the capacity 

to track trends in prevention, intervention and reengagement 
that are associated with policy and programmatic variations, 
geographic and demographic differences, and resources.

ENGAGE FAMILIES, YOUTH, AND 
COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT THE STATE IN 
INCREASING EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES 

AND MAXIMIZING EDUCATIONAL 
ATTAINMENT



Recommendation #9: Increase public engagement 
across the entire spectrum of education. 

Next Steps:
The P-20 Council should collaborate with state agencies, the 

Governor’s Office, and private funders to secure funding to 
support outreach and dissemination around public 
understanding of the new Illinois Report Card, reauthorization 
of ESEA, and educational opportunities for children of military 
families.

ENGAGE FAMILIES, YOUTH, AND 
COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT THE STATE IN 
INCREASING EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES 

AND MAXIMIZING EDUCATIONAL 
ATTAINMENT



Recommendation #10: Develop a plan for Illinois 
education governance and finance that promotes high 
quality, accessible educational opportunities.

Next Steps:
The P-20 Council should work to obtain external funding to 

support the development of a plan for Illinois education 
governance and finance.

PROVIDE ADEQUATE, EQUITABLE, AND 
SUSTAINABLE FUNDING AND SOUND 

GOVERNANCE TO PROMOTE HIGH QUALITY, 
ACCESSIBLE EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES 

THROUGHOUT ILLINOIS. 



Recommendation #11: Track and report progress 
toward the goal: To increase the proportion of 
Illinoisans with high-quality degrees and credentials to 
60 percent by the year 2025.

Next Steps:
The P-20 Council should develop an annual format public 

reporting on the “state of the state’s” P-20 system.

PROVIDE ADEQUATE, EQUITABLE, AND 
SUSTAINABLE FUNDING AND SOUND 

GOVERNANCE TO PROMOTE HIGH QUALITY, 
ACCESSIBLE EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES 

THROUGHOUT ILLINOIS. 



 

 

SECOND ANNUAL REPORT OF 

THE ILLINOIS P-20 COUNCIL  

TO THE GOVERNOR AND 

LEGISLATURE 

 

January 2012 

 

 

 

 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

 



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
2012 PROGRESS TO DATE AND NEXT STEPS .......................................................... 2 

TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM ........................................ 2 

Recommendation #1. ................................................................................................ 2 

Recommendation #2. ................................................................................................ 5 

Recommendation #3. ................................................................................................ 6 

PROVIDE A CLEAR PATH TO CAREERS ............................................................................. 8 

Recommendation #4. ................................................................................................ 8 

DEVELOP AND SUPPORT EFFECTIVE TEACHERS AND LEADERS AT ALL LEVELS OF 

THE P-20 SYSTEM .......................................................................................................... 9 

Recomnmendation #5. .............................................................................................. 9 

Recommendation #6 ............................................................................................... 10 

Recommendation #7. .............................................................................................. 11 

ENGAGE FAMILIES, YOUTH, AND COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT THE STATE IN 

INCREASING EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES AND MAXIMIZING EDUCATIONAL 

ATTAINMENT ................................................................................................................ 13 

Recommendation #8 ............................................................................................... 13 

Recommendation #9 ............................................................................................... 14 

PROVIDE ADEQUATE, EQUITABLE AND SUSTAINABLE FUNDING AND SOUND 

GOVERNANCE TO PROMOTE HIGH QUALITY, ACCESSIBLE EDUCATIONAL 

OPPORTUNITIES THROUGHOUT ILLINOIS. ........................................................................ 15 

Recommendation #10. ............................................................................................ 15 

Recommendation #11 ............................................................................................. 16 





 

 

SECOND ANNUAL REPORT OF THE ILLINOIS P-20 COUNCIL  

TO THE GOVERNOR AND LEGISLATURE 

 

January 2012 

 

To achieve fundamental and lasting improvement in this State’s education system, so that more 

students will complete college and technical programs and be well-prepared to succeed in the 

workforce and the community, it is necessary to coordinate and leverage the policies and 

resources of all stakeholders— state agencies, educational institutions, local schools, community 

groups, employers, taxpayers, and families.  

 State law (P.A. 95-626) established the Illinois P-20 Council in 2007 to guide education policy 

and integrate education at every level. The P-20 Council provides a framework for organizations 

and individuals representing pre-kindergarten through grade 20 (graduate and professional 

school and continuing education) interests to identify common goals, address critical issues, 

align data and metrics for success, and make timely recommendations for “developing a 

seamless and sustainable statewide system of quality education and support from birth through 

adulthood that maximizes students’ educational attainment, opportunities for success in the 

workforce, and contributions to their local communities.”
1
 

According to 2008 census data, about 41 percent of Illinois’ nearly 7 million working-age adults 

(25-64 years old) hold at least a two-year degree.
2
 While this number exceeds a national average 

of 38% and is trending upward over time, projects indicate that the state will require an 

additional 1,273,954 degrees to meet workforce needs in 2025. This represents an additional 

annual increase of 5.4% over current projections and will require unprecedented effort, 

commitment, and resource utilization by state government, educational institutions, and Illinois 

citizens to achieve. The P-20 Council has set as its primary goal: “to increase the proportion 

of Illinoisans with high-quality degrees and credentials to 60 percent by the year 2025.” 

Reaching this goal will require strategic planning, cooperation, and coordination of efforts at all 

levels of the state education system.  

The Illinois P-20 Council issued its first Annual Report to the Governor and Illinois General 

Assembly in January 2011 after one year of operation. Through a series of strategic planning 

sessions, the P-20 Council identified five critical education priorities as a framework for the 

Council’s activities over the next several years: 

▪ Transform the State Education Accountability System 

▪ Provide a Clear Pathway to Careers 

▪ Develop and Support Effective Teachers and Leaders at All Levels of the P-20 System. 

▪ Engage Families, Youth and Communities Throughout the State in Increasing 

Educational Opportunities and Maximizing Educational Attainment 

▪ Provide Adequate, Equitable and Sustainable Funding and Sound Governance to Promote 

High Quality, Accessible Educational Opportunities Throughout Illinois.  

                                                           
1
 P-20 Council Mission Statement www.P20Council.Illinois.gov 

2
 Lumina Foundation http://www.luminafoundation.org/state_data/ 

http://www.p20council.illinois.gov/
http://www.luminafoundation.org/state_data/


Illinois P-20 Council 

 

The Council works via five standing Committees (Data, Assessment and Accountability; Family, 

Youth and Community Engagement; Finance and Governance; School, College and Career 

Readiness; and Teacher and Leader Effectiveness) aligned with the critical priorities and charged 

with working with broad stakeholder groups to gain input and developing recommendations to 

the Governor and Legislature on how to meet our primary goal. Each committee is co-chaired by 

Council members and, to increase participation, includes stakeholders who are not on the 

Council. In 2011, two additional committees were added to enhance the effectiveness of the 

Council. The Coordinating Committee, with membership of all the committee co-chairs, 

promotes communication and collaboration across all P-20 committees. The Joint Education 

Leadership Committee (JELC), with membership of the State agency heads, IL Math & Science 

Academy (IMSA), IL Education Research Council (IERC) and Early Learning Council (ELC) 

and chaired by the Lt. Governor meets monthly to promote the implementation of the Council’s 

recommendations. The JELC report on the implementation of the 2011 P-20 Council 

Recommendations is appended to this report as Attachment A. 

 

The critical priorities and associated recommendations contained in this report are largely 

consistent with those endorsed by the P-20 Council in its first annual report. While annual 

progress has been made in each area and will be reported here, the Council recognizes that 

lasting systemic change of the magnitude required to achieve our goal requires sustained 

attention and commitment over many years. We have added an additional recommendation 

promoting careful study of effective education finance and governance strategies in other states 

and countries to inform Illinois’ efforts to achieve more equitable and sustainable funding for 

education. 

2012 PROGRESS TO DATE AND NEXT STEPS 

 TRANSFORM THE STATE EDUCATION ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEM 

 Recommendation #1: Align Illinois’ student learning standards and assessments to reflect 

the knowledge and skills students will need for the 21st Century.  

 A. With participation of early childhood, higher education, and industry, align the Illinois 

Learning Standards in subjects not addressed by the Common Core State Standards with 

skills students will need for the 21
st
 Century, including the Next Generation Science 

Standards. 

B.  Review and refresh current assessment items and existing grading and reporting systems 

for the kindergarten readiness, ISAT, PSAE and any other state developed assessments, 

to ensure close alignment with Illinois Learning Standards and the Common Core State 

Standards.   

C. Coordinate State reform with the work of the Partnership for the Assessment of 

Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC), a collaboration of states developing K-12 

formative tools and a grade 3-12 assessment system in mathematics and language arts 

that includes online administration, is aligned to the Common Core Standards and college 

and career readiness benchmarks.. 



Second Annual Report 

3 

D. To ensure Illinois students are ready for success in college and career, develop a State 

definition of college and career readiness and grade level benchmarks to assess whether 

students are “on track” for college or career.  

E. Implement an aggressive professional development program for K-12 educators, higher 

education faculty and admissions staff, and early childhood educators to support timely 

implementation of new standards and assessments including Common Core State 

Standards, Next Generation Science Standards, and PARCC. 

Progress to Date: 

In 2011, considerable progress has been made in to promote alignment and implementation of 

Common Core Standards. With regard to alignment, the Early Learning Council (ELC) reviewed 

and approved early learning standards for ages 3 to 5 that are aligned with the Common Core. 

ISBE has written these into proposed rules which are up for public comment until January 30, 

2012. The revised rules will go before the State Board for approval, to JCAR for review, and, 

finally to the Secretary of State for posting in the Register. ICCB and ISBE co-hosted twelve 

alignment workshops with community colleges and their high school partners. There are plans to 

hold these workshops at every community college in 2012, involving 5000 secondary and 

postsecondary educators. ICCB and IBHE conducted reviews of all mathematics and English 

language arts courses approved for transfer under the Illinois Articulation Agreement (IAI) for 

alignment with Common Core State Standards and provided feedback on necessary revisions. 

Finally, ICCB’s Developmental Education Advisory Committee and Adult Education Advisory 

Council will complete alignment with content standards in their respective programs with the 

Common Core in 2012. 

 

Due to budget cuts, ISBE eliminated the writing portion of the ISAT and PSAE in 2011, leaving 

that aspect of the Illinois Learning Standards with no state level standardized assessment.  

 

With regard to professional development, ISBE, partnering with the Regional Offices of 

Education, held eight institutes to prepare almost 2000 K-12 educators from more than 400 

districts to implement the Common Core. In addition, 200 math teachers around the state have 

completed train-the-trainer professional development and will begin to train and support other 

teachers in their regions in implementation of Common Core Standards in mathematics.  

 

As a governing member of the PARCC consortium and a Lead State Partner in the development 

of Next Generation Science Standards, Illinois continues to lead the development of assessments, 

reporting systems and other resources to support implementation of 21
st
 century learning 

standards. With $100 million in support from the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, Carnegie 

Foundation and the Council of Chief State School Officers, Illinois joined a five state consortium 

to develop digital applications aligned to the Common Core State Standards. In 2011, Illinois 

competed successfully for $44 million in Race to the Top funds, a significant portion of which 

will be used to support implementation of Common Core State Standards, assessments, and data 

systems. 

 

In 2011, the P-20 Council adopted a comprehensive College and Career Readiness Framework 

developed by College and Career Readiness Committee to guide alignment and policy 

development in Illinois (See Attachment B). The framework is organized into seven goal 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

statements including: defining college and career readiness for Illinois, maximizing use of data 

across P-20 and workforce pipeline, aligning P-20 curriculum to college and career readiness 

standards, aligning assessments and certifications to pathways, developing a public-private 

infrastructure for industry engagement and partnerships, expanding professional development 

and increased access to remediation. Action is being taken to implement elements of the 

framework as part of Race to the Top, ILDS, and other state initiatives. For example, Illinois 

Pathways, supported by a partnership among Illinois’ education and economic development 

agencies, is an innovative STEM education initiative designed to support college and career 

readiness in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics through programs of study, 

work-based learning experiences and credentialing opportunities. STEM Learning Exchanges, 

public-private partnerships that support local program of study implementation, will be launched 

in February 2012.  

Next steps: 

State agencies have been collaborating effectively to upgrade Illinois’ learning standards to 

reflect 21
st
 century skills and to achieve alignment across the P-20 system. While much has been 

accomplished, the job is not done. To achieve true statewide alignment and implementation 

Illinois must deploy, sustained, intensive communication, professional development, and on-

going support to local educators and vigilant monitoring of student outcomes in terms of 

increased student attainment, reduced need for remediation, and improved completion rates. 

 

Proficiency in written communication is essential for college and career success, yet Illinois does 

not assess writing in the ISAT or PSAT. Illinois should reinstate writing as part of the state 

assessment. 
 

The pressure to implement Common Core State Standards has focused much attention on math 

and English language arts alignment and assessment. While this emphasis is understandable, it is 

important to ensure that all Illinois Learning Standards and related assessments reflect 21
st
 

century skills, are aligned across all levels, and represent the state’s vision for a well educated, 

engaged citizenry. Illinois should undertake a comprehensive reform of Illinois Learning 

Standards and state assessments in areas not addressed by the Common Core. 

 

College and career readiness are central to the Common Core State Standards, the PARCC 

assessment and the state goal “to increase the proportion of Illinoisans with high-quality degrees 

and credentials to 60 percent by the year 2025.” As the Illinois Longitudinal Data System 

(ILDS) comes on line in 2012, Illinois should utilize the P-20 College and Career Framework 

to identify the core elements of a research-based definition of college and career readiness, 

issue specific policy and program recommendations to further align curriculum and 

accountability systems with this goal, and establish grade level benchmarks to assess whether 

students are “on track” for college or career.  

 

 

  



Second Annual Report 

5 

 Recommendation #2: Develop a system of assessment of student learning that provides 

reliable measures for accountability and guides to improve instruction and student learning.  

A.  Refine the state assessment system for school and district accountability to include a 

balance between growth measures and proficiency measures tied to revised Illinois 

Learning Standards and college and career readiness benchmarks and outcomes. 

B.  Develop and disseminate formative assessment items and other exemplars for use by 

educators that reflect mastery of 21
st
 Century skills, Common Core State Standards and 

the Next Generation Science Standards as a means of acquainting teachers, families and 

students with new expectations for learning at all levels, including early childhood and 

postsecondary.  

Progress to Date: 

Assessment reform is occurring across the P-20 system. In K-12, the PARCC assessments, 

scheduled for implementation in the 2014-2015 academic year, are intended to provide 

comparative growth and proficiency data aligned with Common Core State Standards and 

college and career readiness benchmarks for grades 3-12 in English Language Arts and 

Mathematics. As a governing member of PARCC, with direct involvement of ISBE, ICCB, and 

IBHE representatives on PARCC committees, Illinois is well positioned to influence the 

development of the system and to prepare for a coordinated transition to the new system. In 

2011, ISBE supported both stakeholder and technical working groups charged with development 

of a growth model strategy for Illinois. Both groups recommended the use of value tables to 

represent growth using the current state assessment and to serve as a bridge during the transition 

to PARCC and the Board will consider that recommendation at the January Board 2012 Board 

meeting. 

 

In early childhood, ISBE and the ELC are developing a Kindergarten Individual Development 

Survey (KIDS) for piloting in Fall 2012. At the postsecondary level, ICCB and IBHE are 

requiring institutions under review to demonstrate the use of appropriate assessment practices 

and to link, when possible, to licensure or certification requirements in specific fields of study. 

DCEO, ICCB, and ISBE are developing college and career readiness assessments in STEM 

measuring academic proficiency, workforce readiness skills and technical capabilities as part of 

the Illinois Pathways Initiative. 

 

Supported by a $12 million capital bill commitment, ISBE and DCEO are partnering to develop 

and deploy the Shared Learning Environment (SLE) a cloud-based resource providing teachers 

with instructional content, applications and learning maps to aid in implementation of Common 

Core Standards and college and career planning. 

Next Steps: 

ILDS will enable careful study of the relationship P-12 performance and postsecondary and 

career outcomes in Illinois. The state should develop empirically-based college and career 

readiness benchmarks for elementary, middle and high school for use in accountability and 

school improvement. 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

Teachers will need as much information as possible to transform their classrooms and help 

students and families understand the new expectations and assessments. The SLE and the digital 

applications consortium will provide unparalleled infrastructure and interfaces to provide 

resources for teachers. To populate the SLE, Illinois should fund the development of high 

quality formative assessment items, samples of student work, examples of individual learning 

plans and other exemplars that reflect mastery of 21
st
 Century skills, Common Core State 

Standards and the Next Generation Science Standards as a means of acquainting teachers, 

families and students with new expectations for learning at all levels, including early 

childhood and postsecondary.  

 

 Recommendation #3: Develop an accountability system which will enable state and local 

education agencies, educators, parents, students, employers, researchers, and taxpayers to 

easily access and evaluate data about student learning, school climate, and financial 

expenditures in schools, districts, community colleges, and universities. 

A.  Continue to support the development of the Illinois Longitudinal Data System (ILDS) to 

simplify collection and analysis of enrollment, achievement, and graduation records 

across school, districts, institutions, and agencies, from preschool years through post-

secondary education.  

B.  Link ILDS data to workforce longitudinal data system and to support workforce needs 

analysis across the National Career Cluster Framework as well as make data available to 

a broad base of users to support college and career planning.  

C.  Continue to support the development of technology initiatives such as IlliniCloud, the 

SEL, and the Illinois Interactive Report Card, to simplify collection and analysis of data, 

avoid duplication of effort, and reduce costs and administrative burdens.  

D.  Develop a system to capture financial data that provides a clear picture of per-pupil 

expenditures at all levels of the educational system.  

E.  Develop a survey to collect input from parents, students, and teachers for use in 

improving school and district climate and conditions for teaching and learning, as well as 

increasing ease of access to other levels of the education system. 

F.  Make changes to the Illinois State Report Card to include school-level information about 

student achievement and student growth, finances, demographics, teacher characteristics, 

and climate survey results which can be compared to other schools and districts with 

comparable demographic sub-groups.  

Progress to Date: 

One of the P-20’s most laudable accomplishments in 2011 was the overhaul of the Illinois 

School Report Card (See Attachment C). A product of collaboration between the Data, 

Assessment, and Accountability (DAA) Committee which worked with Family, Youth, and 

Community Engagement (FYCE) Committee and the Boston Consulting Group, the new State 

report card provides a user friendly tool for parents and community members to glean key 

information about local schools quickly and easily. In addition to featuring space for principals 

to highlight unique opportunities, programs, and partnerships at their schools, the 2 page 



Second Annual Report 

7 

document focuses on outcome driven measures such as student growth, graduation rates, college 

enrollment, and percentages of students meeting and exceeding standards.  

 

FYCE worked diligently to facilitate nearly 60 focus groups of community members, parents, 

teachers, employers, and school administrators across the state to inform the school report card 

renovation. The P-20 Council College and Career Readiness Committee held a private sector 

focus group and assisted in the development of metrics for college and career readiness. 

Following seven months of deliberation, a diverse group of stakeholders led by DAA including 

teachers, education administrators, parents, advocacy organizations, the business community, 

and state agencies was able to establish consensus on content and format. After review and 

enthusiastic endorsement by the P-20 Council, HB 0605, authorizing the new Illinois School 

Report Card, passed both houses unanimously and will be signed by the Governor at the January 

P-20 Council meeting. The Report Card, in its new format, is to be published October 2013, and 

will be updated annually.  

 

In 2011, Illinois also made considerable progress toward the goal of developing a P-20 data 

system. Building on nearly $20 million in federal grants, ISBE, ICCB, IBHE, ISAC, and DCEO 

are working towards full interagency participation and cooperation in the implementation of 

ILDS. An interagency governance group was established in December 2012 to formulate policies 

and procedures for access, security, and data quality. The first High School to College Success 

was released by ISBE, ICCB and IBHE in 2011 and plans are in place to produce an expanded 

second edition in Summer 2012. 

 

As part of the Workforce Data Quality Initiative (WDQI), DCEO and IDES have formed a 

working group to link ILDS with workforce and social service data systems. This group will be 

integrated as an ILDS technical committee in 2012 and is applying for funding from U.S. 

Department of Labor to support its work. The IDES director has been invited to attend P-20 

Council meetings and will present to the Council at its January meeting. 

 

The Illinois Higher Education Consortium (IHEC) was established to improve data access and 

use for research purposes. Sixty institutions, including all state public institutions, have joined 

the consortium. Data collection will begin in Spring 2012 to meet the reporting requirements of 

the P-20 Longitudinal Education Data System Act.  

 

The Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) and the ELC solicited proposal to design a 

statewide unified early childhood data system to collect data from ISBE-operated programs 

funded through the Early Childhood Block grant and link to the ILDS. 

Next Steps: 

With the signing of HB 0605, the revised Illinois School Report Card will be released in October 

2013. In preparation for the release, the P-20 Council should assist families and other 

stakeholders to understand and use the Report Card by disseminating informational materials 

and promoting statewide training networks.  

 

Several proposed indicators on the new Report Card are “under construction” because they are 

based upon data from the ILDS or other sources not yet available. The P-20 Council should 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

continue to monitor the development of these indicators and linkages between ILDS and the 

Report Card. 

 

The stakeholder focused development process and proposed design for the revised Illinois 

School Report Card serve as excellent models of results based reporting across the P-20 system. 

Illinois should support the development of state Report Cards for early childhood and 

postsecondary education. 

 

The development of an accessible, longitudinal P-20 data system that includes educational, 

workforce and social service data is essential to Illinois’ educational and economic future. While 

much has been accomplished, there is still much to be done to insure full agency cooperation, P-

20 representation and widespread use of the system. State agencies (including IDES and 

IDHS), the General Assembly, and the Governor should continue to promote full 

implementation and use of ILDS and plan for its sustainability when federal funding ends. 

 PROVIDE A CLEAR PATH TO CAREERS 

 Recommendation #4: Coordinate education and workforce data systems to improve career 

counseling and career preparation.  

A.  Make workforce data and the full range of career choices accessible to students and counselors 

for career advising and planning for all students from middle school through post-secondary 

education.  

B.  Develop system-wide links between industry and local classrooms through learning exchanges 

and other career exposure programs. 

C.  Develop and link data systems across institutions and agencies to monitor career training and 

placement. 

Progress to Date: 

Progress toward this goal is largely contingent on timely and effective implementation of ILDS 

to include workforce data. In 2011, as part of the Workforce Data Quality Initiative (WDQI), 

DCEO and IDES have formed a working group to link ILDS with workforce and social service 

data systems. This group is applying for funding from U.S. Department of Labor to support its 

work. Also through WDQI, DCEO is developing a P-20 STEM talent pipeline analysis. This 

resource will be integrated into the STEM Learning Exchanges to inform students, teachers and 

administrators about critical skills and workforce needs in STEM fields. The Learning 

Exchanges, funded, in part, by Race to the Top Funds, are designed to promote linkages among 

industry, local schools and higher education to promote interest and preparation in STEM 

careers. 

Next steps: 

Successful linking of education and workforce data and strong partnerships between education 

and industry are necessary to achieve this goal. State agencies and the P-20 Council should 

continue to promote efforts to incorporate workforce and social service data into ILDS and 

develop public-private partnerships that support career exploration in all fields. 



Second Annual Report 

9 

 DEVELOP AND SUPPORT EFFECTIVE TEACHERS AND LEADERS AT ALL LEVELS 

OF THE P-20 SYSTEM 

 Recommendation #5: Enlarge the pipeline of diverse, high quality candidates into teacher 

and leadership positions throughout the entire educational system. 

A. Implement a statewide strategy for recruiting highly qualified teacher candidates, 

inducting them into teaching and retaining effective educators throughout their careers. 

B. In collaboration with school districts, universities, regional offices of education, and other 

stakeholders, IBHE, ICCB, ISAC, ISBE, and the Teacher Certification Board should 

develop a plan for increasing the diversity and quality of the candidate pool for teacher 

and leadership positions. This plan should consider ethnicity and gender as well as 

diversity of experience and skills.  

Progress to date: 

In 2010, ISBE significantly increased the required passing score on the Illinois Test of Basic 

Skills (TBS) to ensure that students entering teacher education programs possessed adequate 

content knowledge and skills. Pass rates dropped for all students, raising concern among some 

teacher education programs and advocacy groups about the validity of the TBS for predicting 

success as a teacher and the impact of the higher passing score on minority enrollment in teacher 

education programs. ISBE has funded an expanded version of the TBS, the Test of Academic 

Proficiency (TAP), which is computer administered, aligned with Common Core State Standards 

and provides thorough reporting to preparation regarding student performance, for 

implementation in February 2012. In 2011, ICCB developed test preparation modules to prepare 

students for the TBS and the TAP and many colleges and universities offered additional 

preparation for students taking the TBS. Pass rates are being carefully monitored and are rising 

slowly.  

 

The Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC) administers several financial aid programs 

specifically for students studying to become teachers, including the Minority Teachers of Illinois 

Scholarship Program, the Illinois Future Teacher Corps, the Illinois Teachers Loan Repayment 

Program, and the Illinois Special Education Tuition Waiver (SETTW). Unfortunately, budget 

cuts have significantly reduced that Minority Teachers of Illinois Scholarship Program and the 

Illinois Teacher Corps is being phased out. In 2011, Private funding matches were used to 

support 65 minority candidates in the Teach for America program, an additional 100 students 

will be supported in 2012-2013. 

Next Steps: 

A robust pipeline of highly qualified teacher and leaders at all levels is necessary to improve 

Illinois’ education system. Illinois should implement a long term, multi-faceted strategic plan 

for improving the quality and diversity of the pool of candidates for teacher and leadership 

positions including early engagement, recruitment, financial incentives, career ladders, and 

continuous development opportunities. 

 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

ILDS will permit linking of student achievement data with data on schools, teachers and 

preparation programs. As soon as possible, Illinois should undertake a state-wide longitudinal 

study of teacher, school and preparation program factors that predict teacher retention and 

effectiveness. 

 

 Recommendation #6: Improve training and certification for teachers and educational 

leaders in accordance with findings from research and pilot programs.  

A.  Provide additional high quality clinical practice experience for teachers and educational 

leaders from pre-K through 12
th

 grade. 

B.  Build a teacher selection model based on competencies that are most related to effective 

teaching and enhanced student learning, so that state certification indicates a high 

likelihood of success in the classroom, modeled for different subjects and environments, 

pre-K through high school.  

C.  Change the existing teacher leadership endorsement into a tiered structure that provides a 

career ladder for teachers and/or fills the need for certification of general administrative 

positions (e.g., curriculum dean, special education director, athletic director).  

D.  Convene a state task force to examine the content and structure of superintendent 

preparation programs and suggest changes needed. 

 

Illinois is undergoing transformation in training and certification of teachers and educational 

leaders. In August 2011, P.A. 097-0607 was signed into law, developing a new teacher 

certification and endorsement model to improve the quality of teachers and leaders that 

acknowledges the career continuum from pre-service candidate to classroom teacher, to teacher 

leader, principal and beyond. In Spring 2010, P.A. 096-0603 was signed to develop a new, more 

rigorous principal endorsement, replacing the general administrative endorsement (Type 75) 

which will not be issued after September, 2014. In addition, the current teacher leadership 

endorsement cannot be issued after December, 2012, creating an immediate need for policy and 

programmatic guidance regarding these new requirements. 

 

With support from the Fry Foundation, the P-20 Teacher and Leadership Effectiveness 

Committee conducted independent research, solicited feedback from dozens of stakeholders and 

developed a set of recommendations to support the significant efforts already underway in 

Illinois to strengthen teacher and leader preparation, certification and evaluation and to provide 

guidance to the state on new initiatives such as the Teacher Leadership Endorsement and the 

proposed Teacher and Leader Program Dashboard.  

 

In November, 2011, the Teacher Leadership Subcommittee, representing public and private 

universities, school districts, state agencies such as ISBE and IBHE, educational and professional 

associations, teacher and principal practitioners, and policy and advocacy groups issued 

recommendations to ISBE regarding the new teacher leadership endorsement. Survey research 

conducted by the Subcommittee indicated broad stakeholder consensus on the purpose of the 

endorsement, the role of teacher leaders, and core competencies critical for success. 

Recommendations addressed the definition of teacher leadership, Model Teacher Leader 



Second Annual Report 

11 

Standards, program design, evaluation strategies and need for future research. The complete set 

of Teacher Leadership recommendations is included as Attachment D. 

 

In December 2011, the Teacher and Leadership Effectiveness Subcommittee issued a report to 

the P-20 Council offering recommendations regarding a development strategy, program 

performance indicators, and measures for a Teacher and Leader Preparation Program Dashboard 

that is coordinated with the ILDS and provides information about teacher and principal 

preparation effectiveness, impact and outcomes (See Attachment E). The recommendations were 

based upon review of other state dashboards, interviews with Illinois stakeholders, research 

syntheses on teacher and leader preparation and certification requirements, and an extensive 

Delphi survey process with stakeholders representing university programs, district 

administrators, policy makers and advocacy organizations. The Delphi results revealed areas of 

agreement on summative measures and lack of consensus on demographic, contextual and 

continuous improvement indicators. Chicago Public Schools has agreed to pilot collection and 

analysis of formative and summative dashboard indicators as a means of testing the feasibility, 

accuracy and utility of the system and guide refinement.
 3

 

Next Steps:  

 

The work of the Teacher and Leadership Effectiveness Committee provide research-based and 

stakeholder validated guidance for the development of teacher leader programs and dashboards 

to assess effectiveness of teacher and leader preparation programs. ISBE should incorporate the 

committee’s recommendations into the annual teacher and principal program review process 

of the Illinois Educator Licensure Board. 

 

Timely and effective implementation of these changes and assessment of their impact demands 

that relevant student, educator and program data are available and able to be linked. The P-20 

Council and the Joint Education Leadership Committee should ensure that ILDS has the 

capacity to support formative and summative evaluation of teacher and leader preparation 

reform and impact. 

  

 Recommendation #7: Improve teacher evaluation and professional development for the 

entire education spectrum in accordance with findings from research and pilot programs.  

A.  Promote work environments that that strive for excellence and foster professional 

communities within each school that provide an opportunity to learn and grow at work.  

B.  Add professional capacity for teacher evaluation.  

C.  Integrate teacher evaluation with sustained, targeted, and effective professional 

development.  

D.  Support induction and mentoring programs.  

                                                           
3
 For recommendations for specific metrics relating to teacher preparation and effectiveness, the December 2011 “P-

20 Report on Teacher Effectiveness: Policy Priorities to Increase Teacher Effectiveness,” at the P-20 Council 

website. 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

 E.  Consider the feasibility of an accelerated implementation timeline for the new evaluation 

system outlined in the Performance Evaluation Reform Act (P.A. 96-861), and monitor 

how districts’ plans for evaluating teachers are impacting teaching and learning. 

F.  Support mentoring of new principals for their first two years and mentoring of new 

superintendents for their first two years, and assess the impact of that mentoring on 

teaching and learning.  

 

In 2010, the Performance Evaluation Reform Act (PERA) (Public Act 96-0861) was signed into 

law, requiring that principals and teacher evaluation include student growth as a significant 

factor and establishing the Performance Evaluation Advisory Council (PEAC) to advise ISBE on 

development and implementation of the new evaluation systems. In 2011, Senate Bill 7 (P.A. 97-

8) made some changes to PERA, allowing districts and their unions to accelerate their PERA 

implementation and incorporating performance into personnel decisions to permit the most 

effective teachers to remain in Illinois classrooms. This legislation has been touted as progressive 

and potentially transformative by the U.S. Secretary of Education, Arne Duncan and other 

educational leaders. Full implementation will occur by the 2016-2017 academic year. 

 

As noted above, ISBE, the Regional Offices of Education, ICCB and IBHE are working together 

to offer professional development and mentoring on the Common Core State Standards to 

thousands of teachers across Illinois. Through the Illinois Pathways Initiative, the state’s 

education and economic development agencies are launching public-private learning exchanges 

to support teacher professional development in nine STEM areas. Extensive and sustained 

professional development and mentoring will be needed to support statewide change of the 

magnitude required by recent reform legislation. It is of concern that the General Assembly 

eliminated all FY 2012 ISBE funding for teacher and educational leader mentoring. Since FY 

2010, more than 6000 new teachers have been assigned a mentor during their first two years of 

teaching. Eliminating this program severely limits support for new teachers at a critical time in 

their careers. 

Next Steps: 

Illinois has recently passed aggressive, reform-oriented legislation to improve teacher and leader 

quality and evaluation. Illinois should fully fund sustained and extensive professional 

development and mentoring to create educational work environments that foster excellent and 

support professional growth for teachers and administrators.  



Second Annual Report 

13 

 ENGAGE FAMILIES, YOUTH, AND COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT THE STATE IN 

INCREASING EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES AND MAXIMIZING EDUCATIONAL 

ATTAINMENT 

 Recommendation #8: Improve educational attainment through attention to prevention, 

intervention, and reengagement. 

A.  Ensure all children have access to high quality early childhood education and care.  

B.  Ensure that critical wrap-around services are in place for students and families, including 

medical, dental, and mental health care, housing, social services, and after school 

programs, through community-based programs, community schools, or other models. 

C.  Utilize data from the Illinois Longitudinal Data System and other sources to monitor and 

evaluate intervention programs and continuously improve intervention efforts to keep 

struggling students in school. 

D.  Reengage students who have dropped out before attaining a diploma or college degree, 

through the Illinois Hope and Opportunity Pathways through Education (IHOPE) 

Program (P.A. 96-0106), the Truants’ Alternative and Optional Education Program, and 

other means. 

Progress to Date: 

ISBE received a five year grant from the U.S. Department of Education to train educators 

statewide in Response to Intervention (RTI) with a goal of identifying struggling students early 

and providing them with targeted support to keep them on track and reduce the need for more 

intensive services. 

 

 In 2011, the Illinois General Assembly passed P.A. 97-0320, which mandates that public higher 

education institutions will have some portion of funding allocated based upon students’ 

educational progress and attainment. Funding formulae and performance metrics will be 

reviewed and voted upon by IBHE on February 7, 2012.  

 

With $1.6 million in funding from the Gates Foundation, ICCB is designing programs to 

encourage Adult Basic Education (ABE) students to transition to college and career and earn 

more degrees and certificates.  

 

With funding from a federal College Access Challenge grant, ISAC, the Chicago Workforce 

Investment Council, The Center for Adult and Experiential Learning, Women Employed, and the 

City of Chicago are implementing “Complete the Degree” a pilot program to promote re-

enrollment by low income adults with some college credits. 

 

 In consultation with the Governor’s Office on Early Childhood Development, the Early 

Learning Council, the Capital Development Board will release $45 million in capital 

development funds to early care and education providers for construction and improvement 

project serving high need areas.  



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

Next Steps: 

The ILDS has the potential to track Illinois students through all education levels, assess progress 

toward state goals, and identify aspects of the system that are effective and those in need of 

improvement. The P-20 Council should ensure that the ILDS has the capacity to track trends 

in prevention, intervention and reengagement that are associated with policy and 

programmatic variations, geographic and demographic differences, and resources. 

 

 Recommendation #9: Increase public engagement across the entire spectrum of education.  

A.  Provide opportunities for youth, families, and communities to exchange information and 

ideas about P-20 issue areas, and to make recommendations to the P-20 Council about the 

integration of youth and family and community involvement in education at all levels, 

including out of school time, bringing an understanding of diverse community needs and 

cultural barriers to the work of the P-20 Council.  

B.  Community-based coalitions and P-20 Council partners should help to raise public 

awareness about issues and recommendations of the P-20 Council. 

Progress to Date: 

In 2011, the P-20 Council and its Committees have worked to incorporate stakeholder input into 

all aspects of its work. In addition to gathering input in nearly 60 focus groups across the state 

for the Illinois School Report Card redesign led by the Data, Assessment, and Accountability 

Committee, the Family, Youth, and Community Engagement (FYCE) Committee hosted several 

community engagement workshops during the year to identify key concerns and successes in 

Illinois education for consideration by the Council. Boasting an increasing membership of over 

70 representatives of child advocacy organizations, after school programs, parent groups, 

community agencies, youth groups, and other organizations, the FYCE able to employ its 

network to disseminate information about major educational initiatives in the state, reinforce 

existing community collaborations, support coalition building between communities, and 

facilitate dialogue with local stakeholders. FYCE successfully gained support for HR 2437 from 

the P-20 Council, culminating in the recommendation of support for evidence-based social and 

emotional learning programming.  

 

FYCE and the P-20 Council launched the Illinois Educational Opportunities for Military 

Children Council in October 2011. The group, which consists of representatives from Illinois’ 

largest military bases, superintendents of districts with the largest numbers of military students, 

and the P-20 Council, is charged with guiding Illinois’ implementation of the Military Compact, 

identifying and addressing issues related to ensuring a seamless, high quality educational 

experience for the families of active service members. 

 

With assistance from the Grand Victoria Foundation, the P-20 Council has begun to work with 

two community education foundations to foster local implementation of P-20 recommendations. 

Springfield and Decatur community foundations were selected as pilot sites for this initiative. 

Other communities will have the opportunity to join in 2013. 

 



Second Annual Report 

15 

In 2011, ISBE hosted public input sessions on budget development and rules for teacher and 

principal evaluation, receiving input from almost 4000 individuals. ISBE and the Illinois Parent 

Teacher Association are disseminating information on the Common Core Standards to PTA 

member through newsletters and other means.  

 

Lt. Governor Sheila Simon visited all 48 community colleges in Illinois to explore their 

programs and gain input on how the state could facilitate their success. That report, “Illinois 

Community Colleges: Focus on the Finish”, was submitted to the Governor and General 

Assembly in January, 2012. 

Next Steps: 

The P-20 Council’s capacity to effectively engage the public around educational issues is 

increasing, but is limited by lack of resources. The P-20 Council should collaborate with state 

agencies, the Governor’s Office and private funders to secure funding to support outreach and 

dissemination around public understanding of the new Illinois Report Card, reauthorization 

of ESEA, and educational opportunities for children of military families.  

 PROVIDE ADEQUATE, EQUITABLE AND SUSTAINABLE FUNDING AND SOUND 

GOVERNANCE TO PROMOTE HIGH QUALITY, ACCESSIBLE EDUCATIONAL 

OPPORTUNITIES THROUGHOUT ILLINOIS.  

 Recommendation #10: Develop a plan for Illinois education governance and finance that 

promotes high quality, accessible educational opportunities. 

Progress to Date: 

 

The Governance and Finance Committee (GFC) of the P-20 Council began meeting in April 

2011 to review and compare existing finance and governance practices in Illinois, other states 

and countries, synthesize research findings, committee reports and other relevant information, 

work with IERC and other research groups to conduct analyses on Illinois trends and projections, 

and develop a plan or set of considerations for Illinois governance and finance reform. The GFC 

has begun to develop a white paper based upon its research and is working to secure private 

funding to support additional stakeholder involvement, data gathering and analysis, reporting and 

dissemination. 

Next Steps: 

Based upon the experience of the Data, Assessment and Accountability Committee with the 

revision of the Illinois Report card, external resources and expert consultation are critical for 

large scale research and development efforts. The P-20 Council should work to obtain external 

funding to support the development of a plan for Illinois education governance and finance.  

 

 

 



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

 Recommendation #11: Track and report progress toward the goal: To increase the proportion 

of Illinoisans with high-quality degrees and credentials to 60 percent by the year 2025. 

A.  The P-20 Council in consultation with the state agencies serving education, colleges and 

universities, research organizations, and others with access to essential data should 

identify key indicators throughout the P-20 system and establish benchmarks and a 

timeline. 

B.  The P-20 Council should report to the public on progress toward the benchmarks on an 

annual basis, with quarterly updates. 

Progress to Date: 

Through its committee structure and involvement with the ILDS governance, the P-20 Council is 

working to promote the development of indicators, benchmarks and metrics associated with each 

of its five priorities and its primary goal and to ensure that the ILDS will enable continuous 

monitoring of progress. In 2011, important strides have been made toward integration of early 

childhood, workforce and social service data into ILDS. New indicators of readiness, growth and 

effectiveness have been developed for the Illinois Report Card. A candidate framework, 

indicators, and metrics have been developed for a Teacher and Leader Program Dashboard. 

Performance and growth models have been adopted for school accountability, teacher and 

principal evaluation and higher education funding.  

Next Steps: 

When ILDS comes on line in Fall 2012, the state will have the capacity to begin to analyze and 

report data at the P-20 system level. The P-20 Council should develop an annual format public 

reporting on the “state of the state’s” P-20 system.  
 

Illinois must identify and implement the best innovative practices and policies, preschool 

through college, enhance educational opportunities and equity statewide, and streamline our 

education pipeline to promote completion and gainful employment. Some needed reforms will 

require reallocation of resources, and others will require additional resources to transform P-20 

education and prepare Illinois citizens for the 21
st
 century. The challenge is great and all state 

entities must work together to achieve a shared goal of increasing the proportion of Illinoisans 

with high-quality degrees and credentials to 60 percent by the year 2025. The health of our 

economy, the strength of our communities and the future of our children will be affected by the 

decisions we make today. 

 

 
  



Second Annual Report 

17 

THE ILLINOIS P-20 COUNCIL 

 
Chair:  

Miguel del Valle  P-20 Council 

 

Members: 

Josh Anderson   Teach for America  

Jean-Claude Brizard  Chicago Public Schools 

Perry Buckley   Cook County College Teachers Union (IFT) 

Ron Bullock   Bison Gear 

Thomas L. Choice  Kishwaukee College 

Barbara Flynn Currie  House Democrat 

Ray Hancock   Community College Foundation 

Fr. Dennis Holtschneider DePaul University 

Erika Hunt   Illinois State University 

Christine Johnson  Senate Republican 

Michael Johnson  Illinois Association of School Boards 

Joyce Karon   former ISBE board member 

Debra Kasperski  National Board Certified Teacher 

Maggie Laslo   SEIU 

Kimberly Lightford  Senate Democrat 

John Luczak   Joyce Foundation 

Cordelia “Dea” Meyer  Civic Committee of the Commercial Club of Chicago 

Jerry Mitchell   House Republican 

Gary Niehaus   McLean County Unit Dist. 5 

Jeffrey Owens   Advanced Technology Services 

Sharon Thomas Parrott  DeVry, Inc. 

Cynthia Plouche  Williams Capital Management 

Glenn Poshard   Southern Illinois University 

Laurel Prussing   Mayor of Urbana 

John Rico   Rico Enterprises 

Kathy Ryg   Voices for Illinois Children 

Audrey Soglin   Illinois Education Association 

Robin Steans   Advance Illinois 

Rick Stephens   Boeing Corporation 

Debra Strauss   Illinois PTA 

 

Ex-officio:  

Brenda Klostermann   Illinois Education Research Council  

Christopher Koch   Illinois State Board of Education  

Glenn “Max” McGee  Illinois Mathematics and Science Academy 

Geoff Obrzut   Illinois Community College Board 

Diana Rauner   Illinois Early Learning Council 

George W. Reid   Illinois Board of Higher Education   

Warren Ribley   Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity 

John Sinsheimer  Illinois Student Assistance Commission   

 

Coordinator: 

Lizanne DeStefano   University of Illinois 

  



Illinois P-20 Council 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 

Supporting Education Reform  
in Illinois 

 
Report on the Implementation Status of the  

2011 P-20 Council Recommendations 

 
From the P-20 Joint Education Leadership Committee,  

Lt. Governor Sheila Simon, Chair 

 
February 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  



1/19/12 DRAFT 

Introduction 
 
In the past few years, Illinois has positioned itself as a leader in educational reform and made significant strides toward 
bettering educational opportunities for its residents. This momentum can be attributed to the work of legislators, 
agencies, interest groups, and families working together to make change happen. Major achievements include the 
passage of the Performance Evaluation Reform Act (PERA)(Public Act 96-0861), which requires principal and teacher 
evaluations to include student growth as a significant factor, and Senate Bill 7 (Public Act 97-0008).  Senate Bill 7 is a 
bipartisan legislative package that built upon PERA and made significant reforms to education administration in areas 
like the attainment of tenure, requirements for filling new and vacant positions, and the system of dismissal for 
teachers.  In addition, the Illinois State Board of Education adopted and began the implementation of the Common Core 
Standards, internationally benchmarked standards in reading and mathematics adopted by more than 40 states, which 
provide a clear and consistent framework for teachers to prepare students for college and the workforce. These efforts 
and others from education agencies and interest groups are helping to move education in Illinois forward.   
 
Unfortunately, there have also been setbacks, many stemming from the state’s financial problems. For example, in 2011 
the General Assembly eliminated all FY2012 Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) funding for mentoring teachers and 
educational leaders—programs that are important to improving teacher and leader quality.  Budget cuts have also 
resulted in the elimination of the writing portion of the Prairie State Achievement Examination (PSAE).  The PSAE is a 
two-day standardized test taken by all high school juniors in the State of Illinois which includes the ACT test, and, prior to 
the cutback, the optional writing portion of the ACT.  Students applying to selective enrollment universities will now be 
required to take the ACT a second time to complete the writing test, and absorb that cost.  The PSAE included the last 
writing test required by the State of Illinois, as the elementary and middle school writing tests were eliminated in 2010.  
Furthermore, the State has lost early childhood programs and has put school districts in financial limbo due to its 
inability to pay vendors and districts on time.  
 
That being said, Illinois must continue its trajectory towards bettering education, from preschool to higher education. In 
January 2011, the Illinois P-20 Council issued recommendations for developing a seamless statewide system of quality 
education and support to maximize students’ educational attainment, opportunities for success in the workforce, and 
contributions to their local communities. If all recommendations are met and reforms accomplished, Illinois will be on 
track to educating students more efficiently and effectively.   
 
The P-20 reform recommendations complement and strengthen the state’s Race to the Top plan, for which Illinois 
received federal funding in December 2011. Race to the Top is a federal grant program that provides resources to states 
for reform efforts in four areas: improving the use of standards and assessments, increasing the use of data, increasing 
the effectiveness of teachers and school leaders, and improving struggling schools. 
 
This report highlights key efforts by Illinois state agencies toward implementing the P-20 recommendations, increasing 
transparency and accountability to the process of improving education in Illinois.  
 

 
What is the Illinois P-20 Council? 
 
The Illinois P-20 Council was established by the legislature in 2008 to identify needed reforms to develop a seamless and 
sustainable statewide system of quality education and support from birth to adulthood. Its goal is to increase the 
proportion of Illinoisans with high-quality degrees and credentials to 60% by the year 2025. Today, about 41% of the 
state's nearly 7 million working-age adults (25-64 years old) hold at least a two-year degree.   
 
The P-20 Council makes annual recommendations to the Governor and the General Assembly. As noted above, the 
Council issued their first round of recommendations in January of 2011.   
 



1/19/12 DRAFT 

 
What is the P-20’s Joint Education Leadership Committee?  
 
The work of the P-20 Council is done largely in subcommittees, where state agencies, professional organizations, 
interest groups, and community partners come together to move Illinois education forward. The P-20 Council’s Joint 
Education Leadership Committee (JELC), headed by Lieutenant Governor Sheila Simon, encourages collaboration among 
state agencies that govern education and workforce issues and is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the 
Council’s recommendations.  Members of the committee are: 
 

Lieutenant Governor Sheila Simon (Chair) 
Miguel del Valle, Chair of the Illinois P-20 Council 
Dr. Christopher Koch, Illinois State Superintendent of Education 
Dr. George Reid, Executive Director of the Illinois State Board of Higher Education 
Geoff Obrzut, President and CEO of the Illinois Community College Board 
John Sinsheimer, Acting Executive Director of the Illinois Student Assistance Commission 
Warren Ribley, Director of the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity 
Dr. Brenda Klostermann, Acting Director of the Illinois Education Research Council 
Dr. Glenn “Max” McGee, President of the Illinois Mathematics & Science Academy  
Julie Smith, Deputy Chief of Staff, Governor’s Office 
Dr. Diana Mendley Rauner, President, Ounce of Prevention 

 

 
Information in this Report 
 
As stated previously, this document highlights agency efforts toward implementing the P-20 Council’s January 2011 
recommendations to the General Assembly. Participating entities include:  
 
 Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) 
 Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEO) 
 Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) 
 Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) 
 Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC) 
 Illinois Early Learning Council (ELC)  
 
This report will be updated quarterly to reflect progress and posted on the Illinois P-20 Council’s website.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  



1/19/12 DRAFT 

 
 
How Illinois is getting there: 
 

Common Core Standards 
 
 In 1997, the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) adopted the Illinois Learning Standards, which define what all 

students in Illinois public schools should know as a result of their elementary and secondary education. In June 2010, 
ISBE adopted revised learning standards in English Language Arts and Mathematics based on the Common Core 
Standards. The Common Core Standards are internationally benchmarked and now adopted by more than 40 states, 
providing a clear and consistent framework for teachers to prepare students for college and the workforce. ISBE is 
partnering with Regional Offices of Education to train teachers on the Common Core Standards.  A comprehensive 
website supports the implementation. ISBE is working with other states to develop new student assessments based 
on the Common Core. Status: In the summer of 2011, eight professional development institutes were held 
throughout Illinois with almost 1900 educators from more than 400 districts receiving training on the Common 
Core Standards.  In addition, nearly 200 math instructors have undergone Common Core train-the-trainer 
professional development and will in turn train other teachers.  Training will continue through the 
implementation of the new assessments.  New student assessments will be developed by 2014/2015. 

 Illinois is a participant in a five-state consortium to develop digital applications aligned to the Common Core 
Standards. The effort is financed by a $100 million investment by the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, Carnegie 
Foundation and the Council of Chief State School Officers.  Similarly, the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) and 
the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEO) are partnering to develop and deploy the 
Shared Learning Environment (SLE). The cloud-based SLE will provide infrastructure and software to education 
institutions, reducing costs and promoting efficiencies. The SLE will offer students personalized learning resources 
made available through state and local data integration, and will allow teachers easy access to instructional content, 
applications, and learning maps. All content of the SLE will be tied to the Common Core Standards and Illinois 
Pathways Initiative, which launches in February 2012. DCEO will release a $12 million capital bill commitment to 
implement the SLE.  Status: The SLE will begin its rollout in 2012, with statewide access by 2015. 

 
Alignment with Early Learning and Post-Secondary Standards 

 The Early Learning Council (ELC) reviewed and approved updated early learning standards for ages 3 to 5 to ensure 
alignment with the Common Core Standards. ISBE wrote the updated early learning standards into proposed rules 
and released the rules for public comment until January 30, 2012.  Status: When the public comment period has 
ended, ISBE will review all comments to consider changes to the rules, the rules will go before the State Board of 
Education for approval and then to the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules (JCAR) for review. If no 
objections are raised, the rules will be sent to the Secretary of State to be posted in the Register. 
 

 The Illinois Community College Board (ICCB), the Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE), and the Illinois State 
Board of Education (ISBE) are working to align post-secondary coursework with the Common Core Standards. In 
2011, the agencies hosted twelve alignment workshops with community colleges and local high school partners. 
Status: Beginning in Spring 2012, ICCB will host one workshop at each community college, reaching an estimated 
5000 secondary and postsecondary educators. These workshops are scheduled to be completed by December 
2012. 
 

 The Illinois Articulation Initiative (IAI) approves courses for transfer among over 100 higher education institutions. 
ICCB and IBHE are working to align  IAI-approved courses to Common Core standards, so that there will be no gap 

Recommendation 1:  Align student learning standards and assessments to 
reflect the knowledge and skills students will need for the 21st Century. 



1/19/12 DRAFT 
between the expected knowledge of a graduating high school senior and the knowledge necessary to begin college 
courses. The work is currently focused on the Math and English Language Arts faculty, but will expand into the 
science disciplines when those Common Core standards are available.  Status:  Initial reviews were completed Fall 
2011. Reviews reoccur with changes in the field. 

 The ICCB Developmental Education Advisory Committee (DEAC) is examining the relationship between the Common 
Core Standards and remedial education in higher education.  The redesign strategy was outlined in the State's 
Complete College America (CCA) application, for which ICCB is seeking alternative funding.  Similarly, ICCB’s Adult 
Education Advisory Council is aligning the Common Core Standards with Adult Education content standards.  Status:  
Adult education content alignment with the Common Core Standards should be completed by June, 2012.  
Alignment in remedial education will be completed in the area of math in June, 2012, and in English language arts 
in December, 2012 

Career Readiness  

 Illinois Pathways is a new and innovative STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math) education initiative 
designed to support college and career readiness for all students.  It is made possible by a partnership between the 
State of Illinois' education and economic development agencies and funding through Race to the Top.  Illinois 
Pathways supports local programs that enable students to explore their academic and STEM career interests, 
featuring orientation and entry-level courses, work-based learning experiences, and credentialing opportunities.  In 
addition, Illinois Pathways supports new statewide, public-private partnerships known as STEM Learning Exchanges 
that support local STEM learning by  coordinating planning and investment in activities, such as curriculum 
resources, work-based learning opportunities, and career guidance materials.  Status: Illinois Pathways will launch 
in February 2012 and will include participating Race to the Top districts. 

 
 
 

 
 

How Illinois is getting there: 

K-12 

 ISBE is developing new assessments for the Common Core Standards through the multi-state Partnership for 
Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC) consortium, to be ready for use by 2014/2015. The new 
assessments will be computer-based and will require new investments in technology for districts and the state. 
Assessments will incorporate writing through all grades. The new tests will occur with greater frequency and will 
provide results sooner than current state tests, allowing teachers to customize instruction for students based on 
results. Until the PARCC assessment is implemented, Illinois will maintain ISAT and PSAE tests. Status:  New 
assessments for K-12 will be developed by 2014/2015.  Current state assessments have been restricted by budget 
cuts.   ISBE is surveying districts regarding technology capacity.  Additional state investments will be necessary.  
 
Early Childhood  

 The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE), with assistance from the Early Learning Council (ELC), is developing a 
Kindergarten Individual Development Survey (KIDS), which will use a developmentally appropriate process for 
observing and evaluating students periodically throughout the kindergarten year to gauge the progress of their 

Recommendation 2:  Develop a system of assessment of student learning 
that provides reliable measures for accountability and  

guides to improve instruction and student learning. 
 



1/19/12 DRAFT 
skills. Information gleaned from KIDS will help to guide classroom instruction, teacher professional development, 
and resource allocation.  Status:  ISBE will implement KIDS at pilot schools beginning Fall 2012.  
 
Higher Education 

 The Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) currently measures outcomes established through the federal National 
Reporting Systems (NRS) for adult education. Students take federally-approved assessments and results are used in 
conjunction with content standards to guide instruction. ICCB also reviews certificate and degree programs for all 48 
community colleges to assure that appropriate assessment methods are in place.  Status: Ongoing.  

 The Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) reviews institutional and degree program proposals; institutions must 
demonstrate assessment of learning in order to gain program approval. Standards of assessment are measured 
against those required under statute in fields leading to licensure or certification, and through those recommended 
by specialized accreditors and professional organizations. IBHE is revising rules to improve transparency, 
accountability, and efficiency in oversight and to align with new federal regulatory requirements.  Status: The first 
notice for proposed amendments to rules was published in the Dec 23 issue of the Illinois Register. 

Career Readiness 

 The Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (DCEO), ISBE, and ICCB are working together to create 
college and career readiness assessments in STEM (science, technology, engineering, and math) fields for use in the 
Illinois Pathways Initiative and its STEM Learning Exchanges. The assessments measure academic proficiency, 
workforce readiness skills (e.g. soft skills and applied academics), and technical capabilities (e.g. industry 
credentials).  Status: To be complete concurrent with Illinois Pathways Initiative launch in February 2012.  

 
 

 
 

How Illinois is getting there: 

Illinois School Report Card  

 In 2011, the P-20’s Data, Assessment and Accountability Committee spearheaded an overhaul of the state mandated 
School Report Card, which is published every fall for each of Illinois’ more than 3,000 public schools. With input from 
the public collected during 60 focus groups held around the state, and help from the Boston Consulting Group, the 
committee created a succinct three-tiered report card design that has been highly praised. Status: HB 0605 
authorizing the new Illinois School Report Card passed both houses unanimously and awaits the Governor’s 
signature. The Report Card, in its new format, is to be published October 2013, and will be updated annually. The 
P-20 Data and Assessment Committee will now consider the creation of a pre-school report card and/or a higher 
education report card.   
 
Longitudinal Data Systems  

 The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE), the Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE), the Illinois Community 
College Board (ICCB), the Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC), and the Illinois Department of Commerce 
and Economic Opportunity (DCEO) have begun to implement the Illinois Longitudinal Data System (ILDS). The ILDS, 
when fully deployed, will provide data to help track the outcomes of Illinois students as they progress from Pre-K 
through Postsecondary education, and as they enter the workforce.  The ILDS will also include data for students 

Recommendation 3:  Develop an accountability system that will enable 
easy access and data evaluation about student learning, school climate, and 

expenditures, districts, community colleges, and universities. 

 



1/19/12 DRAFT 
enrolled in ISBE-run birth to 5 early learning programs (e.g., Pre-School for All). Illinois has received $20 million in 
federal grants to develop and implement the ILDS. An interagency governance structure is being formed.  Status: 
First round of LDS data collection has begun for the current academic year. Governance structure meetings are 
began in December 2011.   

Critical Success Factor:  Postsecondary progress toward ILDS grant outcomes requires full interagency 
cooperation on broad governance issues, research agendas, and connecting to workforce data. Areas 
affected areas include expansion of the High School to College Success Report, enhancement of 
postsecondary reporting capabilities and reporting portals, and the linking of higher education data with 
secondary student data.  

 DCEO and the Illinois Department of Employment Security (IDES) have formed a working group with state education 
agencies to advance the Workforce Data Quality Initiative (WDQI). The working group developing a common 
identifier that will link education, workforce and social service data systems to support research, front-line service 
delivery, and individual performance management. In addition, the working group is identifying standards and 
industry benchmarks for data quality and security. The working group will pursue a grant from the U.S. Department 
of Labor in the first quarter of 2012.  Status: To be integrated in as a ILDS technical committee in 2012. 
 

 The first High School to College Success Report was released in 2011 and contained 2006-2008 data from ISBE, ICCB, 
and IBHE on students’ performance and achievement in their post-secondary studies. ISBE and ICCB track students 
from secondary to postsecondary enrollment. In partnership with IDES, ICCB and ISBE track employment outcomes 
to meet federal reporting requirements. Status:  The second iteration of the High School to College Success Report 
will be released May-June, 2012.  
 

 As a means of improving data access and use, IBHE is working with public and private institutions to develop the 
Illinois Higher Education Consortium (IHEC). IHEC members will make research requests through the IHEC governing 
board to access portions of the data being submitted by its member institutions. IHEC’s governing body has been 
formed and about 60 institutions have chosen to participate including all of the public universities. Status: IHEC is on 
target to start data collection in Spring 2012 to meet the reporting requirements of the P-20 Longitudinal 
Education Data System Act. 
 

 In coordination with the Early Learning Council, the Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) accepted 
proposals for the design of a statewide unified early childhood data system which would collect data on young 
learners enrolled in programs across system.  This information would connect with the early childhood data 
currently collected in the ILDS and other existing early childhood data systems.  ILDS currently plans to only collect 
information from ISBE operated programs funded through the Early Childhood Block Grant and will not collect info 
on children enrolled exclusively in programs administered through other state agencies or the federal government, 
Head Start and child care for example.  This new system would collect info from early childhood programs across 
systems regardless of operating agency or funding stream.  Status:  Selected application to be announced February 
2012. 

 

 
 
How Illinois is getting there: 

 
Critical Success Factor:  Progress on the Recommendation is contingent on the full implementation of the 
ILDS.  Until the ILDS is fully operational, programs will be limited.   

Recommendation 4:  Coordinate education data systems and workforce 
data systems to improve career counseling and career preparation. 



1/19/12 DRAFT 

 

 DCEO regularly aggregates supply and demand employment data to inform economic development strategies and 
sector-based workforce reports authorized by the Illinois Workforce Investment Board (IWIB).  These reports have 
highlighted how education and training systems need to adjust to better produce the skills and workforce needed to 
meet the demand, including programs directed towards adults and dislocated workers.  Status:  Through Workforce 
Data Quality Initiative (WDQI), DCEO is working towards integrating education and employment data to better 
support P-20 talent pipeline analysis that can be utilized by STEM Learning Exchanges through the Illinois 
Pathways initiative for the purposes of program planning, alignment and investment.   
 
 

 
 
How Illinois is getting there: 
 

Change in the Illinois Test of Basic Skills 

 Students preparing to become teachers in Illinois must take the Illinois Test of Basic Skills to be admitted to college 
and university teacher preparation programs. In September 2010, the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) 
significantly increased the required passing score for the test in order to ensure that those students admitted to 
teacher education programs are adequately prepared and of the highest quality.  ISBE is finalizing an expanded 
version of the current test, to be implemented in February 2012 and called the Test of Academic Proficiency. The 
current Basic Skills Test will be given concurrently until April 2012, when the Test of Academic Proficiency will 
replace it. The new test is aligned to the Common Core Standards and will more thorough reporting to preparation 
programs regarding tudent performance on each area of the test. The new test will be computer-based and offered 
six days per week, providing more flexibility to test takers.  Status:  New Test of Academic Proficiency will be 
offered beginning in February 2012.   
 

 In 2011, the Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) has developed test preparation modules to prepare students to 
pass the Basic Skills Test and the new Test of Academic Proficiency.  Status: Completed. Approved for statewide 
implementation for community colleges and available to all educational institutions. 
 
Scholarships and Funding  
 

 The Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC) administers several financial aid programs specifically for students 
studying to become teachers, including the Minority Teachers of Illinois Scholarship Program, the Illinois Future 
Teacher Corps Program, and the Illinois Special Education Tuition Waiver (SETTW) Program. Programs are also 
available to help teachers repay their student loans after college. For example, the Illinois Teachers Loan Repayment 
Program encourages academically talented Illinois students to teach in Illinois schools.   Status: Due to budget cuts, 
funding for the Minority Teachers of Illinois Scholarship Program has decreased significantly over the past few 
years and the Illinois Teacher Corps Program is being phased out, though the demand for teacher aid and 
assistance has not decreased.  The number of persons taking advantage of the Illinois Special Education Tuition 
Waiver Program and the Illinois Teacher Loan Repayment has remained steady over the past 5 years.  

 The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) leverages private funding matches to increase minority teaching 
candidates for the Teach for America Program.  Status: $1 million in private funding resulted in 65 new minority 
teachers in 2011, and the recruitment of 100 more during the 2012-13 school year.  

Recommendation 5:  Enlarge the pipeline of high quality candidates into 
teacher and leadership positions throughout the entire educational system. 



1/19/12 DRAFT 

 From 2010-2013, the Early Learning Council will provide $225,000 worth of scholarships to students in early 
childhood related programs of study through the Gateways to Opportunity early childhood professional 
development system. Status:  Scholarships will be awarded annually through 2013.  

Career Education and Development  

 Using its online student portal WhatsNextIllinois, Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC)’s ISACorps 
encourages students to begin exploring their strengths, interests, and possible careers beginning in 8th grade—
including whether they would like to go into teaching. ISACorps is comprised of recent college graduates who serve 
as near-peer mentors to high school students, and are responsible for assisting students with career exploration, 
college selection, test preparation, scholarship searches, application completion, and the financial aid process.  The 
ISACorps helps to supplement existing career counseling in school and is funded by the U.S. Department of 
Education’s College Access Challenge Grant Program.  Status: In 2011, over 71,700 students participated in 
ISACorps activities or related services.  

 
Critical Success Factor:  Diversity is an important factor in improving the pipeline of high quality teacher and 
leader candidates.  Continual emphasis on encouraging and supporting diverse students to enter teaching as 
a career is necessary.   

 
 

 
 

How Illinois is getting there: 
 

Curriculum Changes for College and University Education Programs 

 The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE), Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE), and the Illinois Community 
College Board (ICCB) are working with ISBE’s Elementary and Middle Grades Advisory Group (EMAG) to recommend 
changes to teacher preparation programs, ensuring that educators have the preparation to teach successfully in a 
variety of settings with a variety of students. EMAG will also inform teachers on changes to education programs in 
light of the adoption of the Common Core Standards. Status: In progress. Rules will be developed by 2012.  
 

 ISBE is working with college and university teacher preparation programs to redesign courses to meet the revised 
Illinois Professional Teaching Standards, which define what new teachers should know upon completing Illinois post-
secondary education programs. These standards focus on the ability to teach literacy, customize instruction, and 
meet individual student needs. New assessments will be designed based upon the new standards. Status: New 
Illinois Professional Teaching Standard aligned assessments will be in place by 2013.  
 

 The Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) is working with the Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) to redesign 
requirements for introductory courses in Education and Associate of Arts in Teaching degrees based upon the new 
Illinois Professional Teaching Standards. Status: New requirements in place June 2012; Anticipated redesign of 
introductory courses completed December 2012.  
 
Credentialing for Educational Leaders 
 

 ISBE is working with higher education institutions to redesign principal preparation programs that train students to 
become P-12 instructional leaders. A new “principal endorsement” will be given to individuals completing these 

Recommendation 6:  Improve training and certification for teachers and 
educational leaders in accordance with findings  

from research and pilot programs. 



1/19/12 DRAFT 
programs. All preparation programs will need to be approved by both ISBE and IBHE.   Status:  Principal 
endorsement programs will begin to be implemented in 2013. 
 
Outreach on Curriculum Changes 
 

 Early Learning Council (ELC) subcommittees sponsor workshops that familiarize post-secondary faculty and 
administrators on recent changes to the teacher certification process and emerging early learning research, enabling 
them to better prepare the early childhood workforce. Status:  Institutes took place in September and December of 
2011. Additional offerings are planned for 2012.  

 

 

How Illinois is getting there:  
 

Teacher Evaluation 

 The Performance Evaluation Reform Act (PERA) (Public Act 96-0861), passed by the Illinois General Assembly and 
signed by the Governor in January 2010, requires that principals’ and teachers’ evaluations include student growth 
as a significant factor. The Act also established the Performance Evaluation Advisory Council (PEAC), comprised of 
teachers, principles, superintendents, and other stakeholders, to advise the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) 
on the development and implementation of improved evaluation systems.  Status: Districts will implement the new 
performance evaluations for principals in the 2012-2013 school year.  Implementation of new performance 
evaluations for teachers will be staggered, and all districts will implement them by the 2016-2017 school year. 
 

 Senate Bill 7 (Public Act 97-8) was passed by the Illinois General Assembly and signed by the Governor on June 13, 
2011.  It made a few changes to PERA, allowing school districts and their unions to agree to accelerate their PERA 
implementation date to as early as the 2013-2014 school year. The act also incorporated performance into 
personnel decision to ensure that the most effective teachers remain in Illinois classrooms. Status: Different aspects 
of implementation will occur at different times; all schools will implement the requirements fully by the 2016-
2017 school year.  
 
Professional Development  

 

 ISBE is working with Regional Offices of Education to offer professional development training on the new Illinois 
Learning Standards based on the Common Core Standards. ISBE already hosted eight workshops during Summer 
2011, with approximately 1,900 teachers attending. Additional professional trainings are being planned.  Status:  
First round of workshops are complete. Additional training and professional development materials will continue 
to be prepared and scheduled as the state prepares for implementation of new assessments based on the 
Common Core in 2014-15.   

 

 As part of the Illinois Pathways Initiative, the State's education and economic development agencies will launch 
public-private Learning Exchanges to provide professional development opportunities for educators in nine STEM 
(science-technology-engineering-mathematics) groups. The Learning Exchanges will garner public and private 
investments to support this effort. Status: STEM Learning Exchanges will be established in 2012 as part of the 
Illinois Pathways Initiative. 

 

Recommendation 7:  Improve teacher evaluation and professional 
development for the entire education spectrum in accordance with findings 

from research and pilot programs.  

 



1/19/12 DRAFT 
Critical Success Factor: In 2011, the General Assembly eliminated all FY 2012 Illinois State Board of 
Education (ISBE) funding for teaching and educational leader mentoring. ISBE had assigned a mentor to 
each new teacher for a period of two years to develop skills and strategies necessary for instructional 
and leadership excellence. In FY 2010, 4,086 teachers were mentored through 64 pilot mentoring 
projects, and in FY 2011 an estimated 2,373 were mentored in 45 pilot projects. Funding needs to be 
restored.  

 
 

 
 

How Illinois is getting there:  
 

From Preschool to Post-Secondary (P-20) 

 Based on improved P-20 and employment data collection through the Illinois Longitudinal Data System (ILDS), Illinois 
will engage in more data-driven decision making in education and workforce policies and procedures. The ILDS will 
help track how well Illinois students transition through education levels, whether allocation of public resources is 
sufficient, whether career and skill development programs are effective, and progress toward achieving state 
educational goals.  Status: First round of LDS data collection has begun for the current academic year.  
 
Early Childhood 

 To bring access to quality education to more high need children, the Capital Development Board and the will be 
administering $45 million in capital development funds to early care and education providers for construction and 
improvement projects at facilities serving high need areas. This effort is taking place in consultation with the 
Governor’s Office of Early Childhood Development and the Early Learning Council.   Status: Applications are under 
review and selected applications are expected to be announced by March 2012. 

K-12 
 

 In September 2010, the Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) received a five-year professional development grant 
from the U.S. Department of Education to train educators statewide in Response to Intervention (RtI). RtI is a 
general education initiative that requires all district staff, general educators, special educators, and bilingual/English 
Language Learner staff to work together to intervene when students need additional academic and behavioral 
assistance. The focus is on early identification and intervention, rather than delaying assistance to later grades when 
interventions become more costly and intensive. Status: Training will continue for all Illinois districts through 2015. 

 Dual credit is an instructional arrangement in which academically qualified high school students enroll in college-
level courses and, upon successful completion, concurrently earn both college credit and high school credit. Dual 
credit programs in Illinois provide a critical component of the educational pipeline. Dual credit programs in Illinois 
have grown exponentially in the last 10 years. Nearly 83,000 students participated in dual credit during FY2011.  
Both the Illinois Community College Board (ICCB) and ISBE track student participation in dual credit. Status:  ICCB is 
currently exploring a dual credit study to better assess the cost savings for dual credit students in Illinois; 
estimated decision on this study April 2012. 

Higher Education  

 In 2011 the Illinois General Assembly passed Public Act 97-0320, in which public higher education institutions will 
have some of their funding allocated based on students’ educational progress and attainment—this is known as 

Recommendation 8:  Improve educational attainment through  
attention to prevention, intervention, and reengagement. 

 



1/19/12 DRAFT 
“performance funding”. The Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) is coordinating the activities of the 
Performance Funding Steering Committee. The Committee has reviewed a model for the funding methodology and 
performance metrics and will provide its recommendations to IBHE for action at its February 7 meeting. Updated 
information is available on the IBHE website. Status: Performance funding will take effect FY 2013.  

 With funding from the Gates Foundation, ICCB is improving Adult Basic Education (ABE) student transitions to 
college and careers, making instruction more relevant to their career choices, and significantly increasing the 
number of certificates and degrees they achieve. Status: Design phase completed November 2011.  ICCB was 
awarded $1.6 million in December 2011 to implement the project over the next three years.   

 The Illinois Student Assistance Commission has awarded a partnership grant to the Chicago Workforce Investment 
Council, Center for Adult and Experiential Learning, Women Employed, and the City of Chicago. They are developing 
a pilot program – “Complete the Degree” – to encourage re-enrollment by adults with some college but no degree, 
particularly low-income adults. Funding is provided by a federal College Access Challenge grant. Status: Program 
April 2012. 

 

 

How Illinois is getting there:  

Early Childhood 

 The Early Learning Council (ELC) is developing a promotion strategy for the Quality Rating and Improvement 
System—a scale that enables families to make informed decisions about selecting an early childhood program that 
best meets their needs by providing information about the environment, staff qualifications, and activities at the 
site.  Status:  Recommendations on evaluation criteria have been made by the Quality Rating and Improvement 
System Advisory Committee.  Implementation timeline is currently under discussion. 

K-12 

 During the development of the new Illinois School Report Card, the P-20’s Data, Assessment and Accountability 
Committee hosted 60 focus groups around the state in order to receive input on what content should be included as 
part of the Report Card.  Status: Completed. The Report Card, in its new format, is to be published October 2013, 
and will be updated annually.  
 

 The Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) hosted five public input sessions to seek input in budget development for 
FY2013 in Fall 2011. They received testimony in person and electronically from nearly 1,400 individuals.  Status: 
Completed for FY2013 budget; process repeats annually.   

 ISBE worked with the Performance Evaluation Advisory Committee (PEAC) to host eight public engagement sessions 
in October and November 2011. They received feedback in person and electronically from 2,300 individuals as 
proposed new rules were being developed for teacher and principal evaluations. Status: Rules are currently posted 
for public review; comments will be collected and reviewed prior to sending rules to JCAR for approval.  
Comments will be reviewed by staff and we anticipate taking to PEAC and on to the State Board in February. 

 In Fall 2010 ISBE began a partnership with the Illinois Parent Teacher Association (PTA) to raise awareness of the 
new Illinois Learning Standards based on the Common Core Standards. ISBE and the IPTA are working to 

Recommendation 9:  Increase public engagement across the entire 
spectrum of education.  



1/19/12 DRAFT 
communicate with local PTA members through their newsletter and other communications tools. Those efforts 
continue. Status: Ongoing.  

Higher Education 

 In July 2011, the Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC) held a statewide conference called “College Changes 
Everything.” The conference addressed college access and completion issues and planning, and was attended by 
nearly 300 Illinois college and university leaders, high school leaders, community partners, federal TRIO program 
staff, legislators, and policymakers interested in higher education. With sessions presented by state and national 
leaders, including the U.S. Under Secretary of Education, participants received information, best practices, and tools 
for moving their access and completion efforts forward.  Status: Conference to be held annually.    

 The Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) has conducted a communications campaign about the Illinois Public 
Agenda for College and Career Success—a 10-year strategic plan created in 2008 to guide policymakers addressing 
the state’s economic status in the global marketplace and the educational and workforce needs of its residents. The 
communications campaign launched the www.1illinois.org website, produced a series of videos discussing the four 
Public Agenda goals, and made presentations focusing public awareness on supporting minority and low income 
college students to achieve academic success and college completion.  Status: Reports and accountability measures  
toward the goals of the public agenda are applied the to the www.1illinois.org website for public review.  

 

 
 

How Illinois is getting there:  
 

P-20 

 When fully deployed, the Illinois Longitudinal Data System (ILDS), the Illinois Higher Education Consortium (IHEC), 
and the Workforce Data Quality Initiative (WDQI) will enable tracking and reporting of progress toward the 60% by 
2025 goal.  Status: ILDS has begun collecting data for the current academic year. IHEC plans to begin collecting 
data in Spring 2012. WDQI will begin integrating workforce and social service data on a project-by-project basis 
beginning in 2012. 
 
Higher Education 

 In 2012, Illinois joined Complete College America’s alliance of 29 states with the objective to significantly increase 
the number of adults with a college degree or credential of value and to close attainment gaps for traditionally 
underrepresented populations. To join, Gov. Quinn and the directors of IBHE, ICCB, and ISAC submitted a letter of 
agreement to the Alliance of States in CCA. As a Complete College America state, Illinois has pledged to make college 
completion a top priority and committed to the following three actions: setting completion goals, developing action 
plans, and moving key policy levers.  Illinois also committed to collect and report common measures of progress.   
The Illinois leadership team includes representatives of the Governor’s Office, the Lieutenant Governor’s Office, 
members of the General Assembly, and state education agency leadership. Status: CCA produces annual reports 
across standard data elements to track state vs. state progress at 
http://www.completecollege.org/docs/Illinois.pdf, which will include Illinois progress reports.  
 

Recommendation 10: Track and report progress toward the goal: to 
increase the proportion of Illinoisans with high-quality degrees and 

credentials to 60 percent by the year 2025. 



1/19/12 DRAFT 

 The Illinois Student Assistance Commission (ISAC) has developed a database that can track low-income students, 
ACT test-taking, Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) completion, and college continuation behaviors 
from 11th grade through the completion of undergraduate postsecondary education.  Status: Status: Once the 
Illinois Longitudinal Data System (ILDS) is fully operational, ISAC will be able to use the ILDS as a single source of 
data on students who graduate, rather than multiple sources currently utilized.  The ISAC will not be contributing 
specific financial information that ISAC database includes to the ILDS.  FAFSA data is protected by federal privacy 
laws and cannot be shared at the unit record level at this time.  However, ISAC could provide averaged financial 
data in needed. 

 Through the Gates’ Foundation Accelerating Opportunity Grant, received in 2011, the Illinois Community College 
Board (ICCB) will improve state and institutional capacity for tracking individual student outcomes.  It will improve 
ICCB and individual community colleges’ ability to match Adult Basic Education (ABE) data with postsecondary data, 
postsecondary data with wage-record data, and employ alternative strategies to capture employment and 
advancement outcomes. Status:  Work through this grant will continue through November, 2014. 



ESEA Flexibility Waiver Request  

Illinois Stakeholder Meetings 
 Planned Meetings 

 

Target Audience Location #  Done STAFF 

1.  October 14, 2011 System of Support Coordinators Utica, Illinois  25      

2.  November 29, 2011  Initial Vetting Group 

Superintendents, Teachers, Principals  

Bloomington, Illinois  30     

3.  November 29, 2011  Illinois Association of Title I Directors Springfield, Illinois 75     

4.  November 30, 2011  Community of Practitioners  Springfield and Chicago 25     

5.  December 7-8, 2011 Illinois State Advisory Council ISAC 

on the Education of Children with 

Disabilities 

Springfield 25     

6.  December 5, 2011 Gifted and Talented Advisory Council Springfield, Illinois 10     

7.  December 6, 2011 Illinois Advisory Council on Bilingual 

Education  

Oak Brook Hills Marriott 

Resort  

3500 Midwest Road Oak 

Brook, IL 60523 

30     

8.  December, 20 2011  Superintendents Stakeholder Group Springfield, Illinois 20     

9.  January 9, 2012 Educators that work with diverse 

learners: students with disabilities, 

students learning English as an 

additional language, and students from 

poverty (Title I) 

Northern Illinois University 

Extension Campus  

Naperville, Illinois 

150     

10.  Wednesday, January 25 (TIME) 
Illinois Alliance of Administrators of 

Special Education (IAASE) 

TBD    

11.  Thursday, January 26 (4:30pm – 

6:30pm)  
Teachers hosted by IEA  

3440 Liberty Drive 

Springfield, IL 62704 

75  Melina, 

Monique, 

Robin, Mark, 

Vicki 

12.  Friday, January 27 (all day) 
Stakeholder meeting and working 

group meeting 

Bloomington - TBD 60  ALL 

13.  Monday, January 30 (4:30pm – 

6:30pm)  
Teachers hosted by IEA (4:30 pm – 

1555 Bond St., Suite 121 

Naperville, IL  60563-0112 

75  Monique, 

Robin, Beth,  



6:30 pm)  Jeff 

14.  Tuesday, January 31 (9:30am – 

12:30pm) 
Education Stakeholders 

John A. Logan College and 

Conference Center 

Batteau Room (Room F103) 

700 Logan College Road 

Carterville, IL  62918 

Phone – 618-985-3741 

 

75  Melina, 

Maribeth,  

Mark, Vicki 

15.  Tuesday, January 31 (4:30pm – 

6:30pm)  
Teachers hosted by IEA  

1012 Plummer Drive, Suite 

400 

Edwardsville, IL  62025-

2823 

75  Melina, 

Maribeth, 

Beth, Mark, 

Vicki 

16.  Thursday, February 2 (9:30am – 

12:30pm) 

Education Stakeholder  President Abraham Lincoln 

Hotel and Conference Center 

Main Floor Ballroom 

701 East Adams 

Springfield, IL  62701 

Phone - 217-544-8800 

100  Melina, 

Maribeth, 

Beth, Mark, 

Jeff 

17.  Friday, February 3 (9:30am – 

12:30pm)  

Education Stakeholders  Rock Falls Hotel 

“E” Hennepin Room 

2105 First Avenue South 

Rock Falls, IL  61071 

Phone – 815-626-5500 

100  Melina, 

Maribeth, 

Beth, Jeff 

18.  February 3, 2012  North Cook ELL Education Service 

Provider Group 

Des Plaines 50  Reyna 

19.  Tuesday, February 7 (10:00 – 

10:45) 

Wednesday, February 8 (10:00 – 

10:45) 

NCLB Conference  - ESEA flexibility 

Request:  State Developed 

Differentiated Recognition 

Accountability and Support 

 

Sheraton Chicago Hotel and 

Towers 

301 E North Water St, 

Chicago, IL 60611  

(312) 464-1000 

  Monique and 

Melina 

20.  Tuesday, February 7 (11:00 – 

11:45) 

Wednesday, February 8 (11:00 – 

11:45) 

 

NCLB Conference - ESEA flexibility 

Request:  College and career Ready 

Expectations for all students  

Sheraton Chicago Hotel and 

Towers 

301 E North Water St, 

Chicago, IL 60611  

(312) 464-1000 

  Robin  

21.  Tuesday, February 7, (2:00 – NCLB Conference -  ESEA flexibility Sheraton Chicago Hotel and   Jeff 



2:45) 

Wednesday, February 8, (2:00 – 

2:45) 

 

Request:  State Developed 

Differentiated Recognition 

Accountability and Support (teachers 

and principal evaluations) 

Towers 

301 E North Water St, 

Chicago, IL 60611  

(312) 464-1000 

22.  Wednesday, February 15 (7-

8:30pm)  

PTA meeting  Naperville or Morton HS 75  Melina, 

Maribeth,  

Jeff 

23.  Thursday, February 16 (7-

8:30pm)  

PTA meeting Naperville or Morton HS 75  Melina, 

Maribeth, 

Jeff 

24.  February 15or 16, 2012 CPS – Peter Godard (before 4pm)  

 

CPS    

 



1

Illinois RTTT 3 Award:
A Focused Plan for Dramatic Instructional Improvement



2

The Award

1. ED announced on 12/23/11 that Illinois will 
receive $42.8 million as part RTTT3 

2. Phase 3 funding only for the states that were 
high-scoring finalists in the 2010 RTTT 
competition

3. Total of 7 states receiving funding through 
RTTT3

4. Requirement that 50% of award be allocated to 
Participating LEAs
• 21.4 million to Participating LEAs
• 21.4 for supporting state activities



3

Key Dates

1. Four-year grant period (12/23/11 – 12/22/15) 

• Grant Year 1:  12/23/11 – 12/31/12

– Majority of funds not available until April 1, 2012

• Grant Year 2:  1/1/13 – 12/31/13

• Grant Year 3:  1/1/14 – 12/31/14

• Grant Year 4:  1/1/15 – 12/22/15

2. Upon completion of ED’s clarification questions 
re budget and performance measures, ISBE may 
draw down 12.5% of award (likely in next week)



4

Overarching Goals

1. Implement a real-time instructional 
improvement cycle in Participating LEAs that 
leads to dramatic growth and a foundation for 
continuous improvement

2. Participating LEAs serve as “reform exemplars” 
for the entire State

3. Build capacities for statewide implementation 
of key reforms



5

Illinois RTTT 3 Strategy Components:  
Learners at the Center

Curriculum/

Instruction

(What?)

Assessment

(How Well?

Instructional

Learners

(Who?)

-

Standards/

Curriculum

(What?)

Assessment

(How Well)?

Instruction

(How?)

Learner

Portfolio & 

Pathways

(Who?)

Illinois Shared Learning Environment & 

Instructional Improvement System

Educator Quality

(By Whom?)

Learning 

Environment

(Where?)

I



6

General Capacity and Commitments 

Participating LEA Expectations General State Supports

1. The district must agree to integrate with the ISLE, 
participating in the 2nd phase of implementation

2. The district must using Rising Star (or approved 
equivalent) as its comprehensive instructional 
improvement process

3. The district must agree to provide sufficient autonomy 
in the use of time and re-allocate PD resources 
necessary for implementation

4. The district must participate in all State-led efforts to 
undertake district networking activities, disseminate 
implementation models, and evaluate program results

5. The district must leverage ISLE and redesigned State 
Report Card for parental/community engagement

6. Agreement to leverage SIG funds for any Tier I or Tier II 
schools

7. The Participating LEA allocation must only be used for 
direct expenditures relating to its implementation of 
its plan

1. ISLE 
2. Center for School 

Improvement (CSI)
3. Additional ISBE 

Capacity
4. Illinois Collaborative 

for Education Policy 
Research (ICEPR)

5. New State Report 
Card



7

Learner Profile and Pathways

Participating LEA Expectations State Supports

1. As part of integration with ISLE, implement a 
strategy to link student data across local systems 
to support the creation of integrated learner 
profiles

2. Establish an individual learning plan program,
commencing in 7th grade, that aligns to a 
Programs of Study model in the predominant 
feeder schools for high schools implementing 
STEM Programs of Study

3. For LEAs serving grades 9-12:  Establish two or 
more Programs of Study promoting critical STEM 
application areas

1. ISLE provides platform for 
learner profile, ILP, and 
Program of Study supports

2. STEM Learning Exchanges 
support POS 
implementation in critical 
STEM areas

3. College and Career 
Readiness Programs 
supports POS alignment to 
postsecondary education



8

Standards Implementation: Instructional 
Practices

Participating LEA Expectations State Supports

1. Establish strong instructional leadership at the 
district- and school-level

2. Establish professional learning communities to 
support implementation of all aspects of 
instructional improvement process

3. Establish alignment teams to address critical 
transition points:  PreK to elementary, middle to 
high school, high school to postsecondary

4. Ensure the district's plan for RtI implementation 
provides for targeted interventions and 
differentiated supports, aligned to the revised 
Learning Standards, for students that are not on 
pace to meet CCR expectations

5. Embed learning maps available through ISLE as a 
central part of instructional practices at all grade 
levels

1. CSI supports instructional 
improvement processes

2. ISLE hosts learning maps
3. State alignment supports:

• KIDS
• EPAS
• College and Career 

Readiness Program
4. State RtI supports



9

Standards Implementation: 
Curriculum, Grading & Reporting

Participating LEA Expectations State Supports

1. Perform grade-level curriculum analysis using 
new standards

2. Undertake cross grade-level discussions to 
identify shifts in content

3. Integrate writing through-out the curriculum
4. Integrate CCSS in Math, ELA and literacy across 

the curriculum, including the concept of text 
complexity for ELA and application for Math

5. Integrate CCSS Science framework into 
curriculum

6. Implement a standards-based reporting system 
in Math, ELA and Science

1. CSI oversees standards & 
curriculum implementation 
activities, working closely 
with content specialists at 
ISBE

2. ISLE hosts resources for 
implementation



10

High Quality Assessments
Participating LEA Expectations State Supports

1. Develop an assessment system that includes formative 
and summative assessments in a coherent framework 
to support standards-aligned instruction and, where 
appropriate measure student growth

2. Integrate CCSS assessment items in subjects other than 
math and ELA

3. Participate in district network activity across all of the 
RTTT3 participating districts to develop Type II and 
Type III assessment frameworks and items which can 
be used on a district-wide basis by all teachers in a 
given grade or non-tested subject area
• 10% of the Participating LEA’s allocation must be 

used for development and implementation of Type II 
or Type III assessment frameworks and items

4. Agree to serve as a pilot district for PARCC consortium 
and KIDS assessment

1. CSI
2. "Assessments for Learning" 

strategies:  
a. Statewide contract for 

Type I assessments and 
corresponding tools to 
help districts use these 
assessments

b. Open-source frameworks 
and district network 
activity to develop 
assessment items for 
Type II and Type III 
assessments

c. Assessment item bank 
and other assessment 
supports hosted on ISLE



11

Educator Performance Evaluations
Participating LEA Expectations State Supports

1. School districts having 500,000 or more inhabitants must 
fully implement PERA’s requirements for teacher 
evaluations by September 1, 2013.  All other school 
districts must have union agreement to implement PERA’s 
teacher evaluation requirements on a timeline that is at 
least as aggressive as the following: 

a. “No stakes” implementation of student growth 
component in all schools by September 1, 2013

b. Full PERA implementation: 
 By September 1, 2014 for districts within 

lowest 20% of districts
 By September 1, 2015 for all other districts

2. Establish a formal peer evaluation system that is used for 
a significant portion of summative evaluations and can be 
used as part of evaluations during teacher remediation

3. Use positive performance evaluations as part of the basis 
for selecting peer evaluators and mentors

4. Implement State-adopted survey of learning conditions or 
an approved equivalent, subject to RTTT3 or other State 
funding

5. Fully cooperate in the PERA Research-based Study

1. Performance evaluation 
training program

2. Support for principal and 
teacher evaluators to 
participate in training

3. PEAC and PEAC 
Subcommittee support

4. PERA Research-based Study



12

Educator Quality: HPHM Schools and 
Induction and Mentoring

Participating LEA Expectations State Supports

1. Partner with ISBE and preparation programs 
in pipeline strategies for HPHM schools

2. Establish induction/mentoring for two years 
in duration for teachers and one year for 
principals meeting specified standards 
subject to availability of RTTT3 or other 
State funding

3. Participate in State technical assistance and 
accountability infrastructure for induction 
and mentoring programs 

1. Incentives for teacher 
preparation programs 
to establish 
Participating LEA 
partnerships and 
redesign programs to 
address CCSS and ISLE

2. Funding for 
induction/mentoring in 
Participating LEAs and 
certain state 
infrastructure



13

Next Steps & Timeline

1. Jan. 24, 2012: Letter announcing process for becoming a 
Participating LEA delivered to all district superintendents 

2. Feb. 7, 2012 (tentative):  RTTT3 Overview Webinar for all 
interested LEAs

3. Feb. 29, 2012: Deadline for submission of “intent” to 
serve as Participating LEA

4. Early March, 2012: Tentative award notices to LEAs that 
expressed intent to serve as Participating LEAs 

5. Mar. 1-31, 2012: Negotiation of Scopes of Work for each 
Participating LEA

6. Apr. 2, 2012: Deadline for ISBE to submit executed Scopes 
of Work to ED



14

Scopes of Work

1. Required for both State and each Participating 
LEA

2. Consistent with State’s Phase 3 Approved 
Application

3. Detailed work plans that include specific goals, 
activities, timelines, budgets, key personnel and 
annual targets for key performance measures 

4. Monitored and updated for compliance 
throughout grant period 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Illinois Pathways, funded through Race to the Top, is a new and innovative State of 
Illinois-led STEM education initiative designed to support college and career readiness 
for all students.  Through partnership between the State of Illinois' education and 
economic development agencies, Illinois Pathways supports local programs that 
empower students to explore their academic and career interests.  It is also creating new 
statewide, public-private partnerships known as Learning Exchanges that better 
coordinate investments, resources and planning for those programs.   

 
Why Illinois Pathways? 
 

As Illinois' economy continues to recover it is critically important to understand how 
our economy is both growing and changing.  More importantly, we need to make 
sure our education system is supporting students in developing the skills and 
knowledge that will ensure they are competitive in a 21st century economy.  We 
know that the majority of job opportunities in the future will require some level of 
college education or training.  As part of this effort, the State of Illinois' P-20 Council 
has established a goal to increase the proportion of Illinoisans with high-quality 
degrees and credentials from 44 percent to 60 percent by the year 2025. 

 
Illinois Pathways proposes a new and innovative approach to increasing 
credential attainment by supporting two strategies: 

 
1. Better support local schools, postsecondary institutions,  and programs 

to enable learners to explore their academic and career interests in 
STEM fields; and 

2. Improve coordination of public and private investment, including 
business and industry, in supporting the development of a workforce 
that can be competitive in tomorrow's economy. 

Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity  
Illinois State Board of Education  
Illinois Community College Board 
Illinois Board of Higher Education 
Illinois Student Assistance Commission 
Illinois Department of Employment Security 

Launching 
February 2, 2012 

http://qrcode.kaywa.com/img.php?s=8&d=http://www.illinoisworknet.com/ilpathways


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Empowering Learners to Explore their Academic and Career 
Interests through Local P-20 STEM Programs of Study 
 
P-20 STEM Programs of Study are organized around a career cluster and feature a 
series of orientation and advanced pathway courses--including early college--across 
education institutions that are accompanied by opportunities for students to enrich 
their learning through work-based learning experiences as well as demonstrate their 
understanding through assessments and industry credentialing opportunities.  
Originally developed and implemented as part of Career and Technical Education, P-20 
STEM Programs of Study serve as a model for bridging programs across P-20 
education institutions and are demonstrated to improve academic achievement, 
increase graduation rates, and improve transitions to postsecondary education and 
employment.  Also, P-20 STEM Programs of Study are designed to improve access and 
success for underrepresented populations in STEM fields, such as women, minorities, 
low-income, and disabled students.      
 
Aligned to the National Career Cluster Framework, P-20 STEM Programs of Study 
enable the State's education institutions to align their curriculum, assessments and 
career counseling with the State's growing economic development sectors thereby 
ensuring successful transitions to employment and a stronger economy for Illinois.   
 
 
Supporting Local P-20 STEM Programs of Study through 
Statewide Learning Exchanges 
 
STEM Learning Exchanges are a new, innovative public-private education partnership that is organized to 
support local implementation of P-20 STEM Programs of Study by coordinating and reducing the transaction 
cost among statewide networks of education partners, businesses, industry associations, labor organizations, 
and other organizations.  Learning Exchanges are organized by career cluster and work to coordinate planning 
and investment, aggregate resources, and review talent supply-chain performance.         
 
Learning Exchanges provide a new infrastructure by voluntary association that help coordinate investments at 
a statewide level to better connect and serve local programs in a similar career cluster while also tracking local 
and statewide performance. Each sector-based Learning Exchange is governed by a consortia of education, 
business and community partners with a specific entity serving as a fiscal agent to receive public investment.  
Learning Exchanges are required to have a state-approved strategic plan and have a state designation, but 
they operate as independent, voluntary public-private networks. 
 
Contact 
To learn more about the State's STEM education efforts please email ilpathways@illinois.gov. 
 

January 27, 2012  

Launching 
February 2, 2012 

mailto:ilpathways@illinois.gov


Department of Employment Security

Illinois P-20 Council

January 24, 2011

Jay Rowell, Director
Evelina Loescher, Economic Information & Analysis



OVERVIEW

Finding Jobs for Job Seekers



Helping Job Seekers Now

• Illinois Job Link: New Labor Exchange

• Help Wanted Online (Real time LMI)

– Job openings in demand by geographic area

– Skills needed to fill in-demand jobs

• TORQ 

– When occupations are no longer in demand

– Focus on transferable skills, knowledge, ability

– Training requirements for job shifts



Traditional Labor Market Information

• http://www.ides.illinois.gov/

• Career Information

• Employment Projections

• Wage Information



Career Information System (CIS)
http://ilcis.intocareers.org/default.aspx

• Grade 5 to graduate students

• Links student interests through career options

• Occupations in state, region, nation

• Occupations within programs of study, link to 
local colleges

• Wage information

• Basic information (financial aid, etc) by school



Career Pathways

• STEM Initiative
• Focus on 9 career pathways in Illinois

– Agriculture
– Architecture & Construction
– Energy
– Finance
– Health Sciences and Healthcare-Information Technology
– Information Technology
– Manufacturing
– Research & Development
– Transportation, Distribution & Logistics



Employment projections

• School districts in local areas may review 
existing and explore new programs of study 
based on demand 
– Use LMI to substantiate need for training

– Occupation employment projections for long term 
trends

– Industry employment projections for new and 
emerging fields

– Local labor market economists provide local 
information and insight



ISU project

• Long term project 
• Developing infrastructure
• Determining characteristics of UI claimants to see how 

to best serve needs of job seekers
• Are now working to incorporate employment services
• Determining skill requirements of employers
• Longitudinal Workforce Database

– Data Quality Campaign
– Working with data and research staff of all partners to 

begin this process
– Concern is having resources to continue development in 

the long term



Local P-20 Collaboration 

P-20 Council Meeting 

January 24, 2012 

 

Two local community foundations were identified to explore/pilot an affiliation with the State P-20 

Council:  The Community Foundation of Decatur / Macon County and Community Foundation for the 

Land of Lincoln. 

A general need from the local perspective is to understand the overall vision of the State P-20 Council.   

Initiatives were identified for the local P-20 Councils to address that met four criteria: 

1. They responded to a local education or workforce need  

2. Infrastructure is currently in place on which to build  

3. Staff resources are available to help support the initiative 

4. The local council is able to mobilize its community(ies) around this initiative 

These initiatives fell into various educational levels and are summarized below. 

1. Early Childhood.  Share information about what early childhood data will be collected by the State 

so that local councils can align their data collection efforts.  For example, many communities are 

collecting data from the Brigance tool, but if that will not be used at the State level, those efforts 

may be discontinued.  

2. Middle School.  Strengthen after-school programs by providing professional development and 

training to volunteers who aren’t teachers or professional tutors.  Also explore other strategies that 

have proven effective with children who are at-risk academically, such as a parent-school counselor 

intervention with individual students.  Voices for Illinois Children and the After-school for Children 

and Teens Now (ACT Now) are interested in lifting up high quality after-school programs. 

3. High School.  Explore making the third WorkKeys assessment available to high school students and 

adults so they are eligible for the National Career Readiness Certificate.  Such an initiative could 

involve Workforce Investment Boards as well as P-20 Councils. 

4. Postsecondary Education   

a. The Illinois Board of Higher Education and the Illinois Community College Board are both 

interested in supporting a “Recruit Back” initiative to get adults with some postsecondary 

credit but no degree back into school.  A scalable initiative could be of interest to the 

Lumina Foundation.  It would also require a scholarship component. 

b. Providing postsecondary programming that met the scheduling, instructional, and career 

needs of non-traditional adult students.   

c. Help bridge the divide between employers and the educational community to improve the 

fit between available jobs and education/training programs.   



214 STATE HOUSE 

SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62706 

OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR 

SHEILA SIMON 
 

 

Four Steps to Focus on the Finish 

 
Goal: Increase the proportion of working-age adults in Illinois with meaningful career 
certificates and college degrees to 60 percent by 2025, from 41 percent today.  
 

STEP 1: Start students on the right path 
 

 Diagnose, improve college and career readiness  

 Add up high school and bridge math courses 

 Offer dual credit courses to juniors and seniors at all public high schools 
 

STEP 2: Know who we serve 
 

 Package programs and schedules to fit the needs of diverse students who 
balance work, school, families and commutes 

 Contextualize and embed remedial skills courses in credit-bearing courses 

 Provide wrap-around support services, including financial aid advisement, 
orientation, progress assessment, tutoring and career development 

 

STEP 3: Draw a better map 
 

 Create a general education certificate that guarantees transfer students 
sophomore status  

 Cap associate degrees at 60 credits, award them en route to bachelor’s degrees   

 Target MAP funding at completed applicants, independent students 
 

STEP 4: Reward success 
 

 Establish common measures of success, including certificate and degree 
completion overall and by at-risk students, transfers, and advancement in 
remedial and adult education 

 Publish the success rates by college annually in consumer-friendly report cards 

 Tie progress and success to state funds 
 
 

For a copy of the full report please visit: www.ltgov.il.gov. 

http://www.ltgov.il.gov/


UIC World Class Education Colloquium – Keynote Highlights 
(Complete Keynote Presentations are available online at 

worldclasseducationillinois.org) 
 

1. Marc S. Tucker 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Charles E. Pascal 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

3. Pasi Sahlberg 
The Finnish Way 

Academics v. Holistic 

Standardization v. Personalization 

Competition v. Community 

Choice v. Equity 

Accountability  v. Trust 

Three Questions for Illinois: 

1. Do you need all that standardized testing? 

2. Can you do more to improve well-being? 

3. Could vocational education options be enhanced? 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 Aggressive international benchmarking 

 Powerful, coherent, aligned instructional systems 

 Design to get all students to high standards 

 Funding systems that put more money behind students who are harder to educate 

 High quality teaching force 

 Workplace organized and managed along professional lines, not industrial lines 

 Coherent education systems 
 

Standing on the Shoulders of Giants 
7 Strategies for Success 

 
 

 
 
Fuzzy governance “No one organization at Queen’s Park or in the community is responsible for driving 

change; process is important but without accountable leadership, it’s a pathway to 

nowhere.” 

Hardening of the 

categories 

“Too many cross purpose legislative silos = time spent filling out multiple budget forms, 

spending less time on service and preventing key changes to better serve kids and their 

parents.” 

The obstacle of tradition “While many in my community are sincerely dedicated to improving coordination of 

services, they are hampered by their own traditions. The Best Start table is a forum to keep 

an eye on each other, defend turf, and prevent anything more than marginal changes.” 

Resources for Change “More money is nice but it is not the fundamental barrier if existing resources are not used 

effectively.” 

Short-termism “We need a non-partisan approach for doing the right things for a change.” 

Success “Success is a barrier for some communities who confuse high level collaboration with true 

integration and systems change.” 

 
 

Removing Obstacles to Change 
 
 



 1 

 

UIC World Class Education Colloquium Series 
MINI-GRANT REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

December 16, 2011 
 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

We are pleased to offer five to ten mini-grants in the amount of $5,000 to $10,000 each to 

advance the conversation and the work begun by the UIC World Class Education Colloquium 

series. Application is open to all of the organizations represented by attendees of one or both of 

the Colloquium sessions held on September 26, 2011 and December 5, 2011.  All grant funds 

will distributed in the form of reimbursements for grant-related expenses.   

 

BACKGROUND 

The UIC World Class Education Colloquium is funded by The Chicago Community Trust and 

the McCormick Foundation and is held in collaboration with the Illinois State Board of 

Education and the Chicago Public Schools. UIC is hosting this series to engage participants in 

dialogue with educators from nations and states that have successfully addressed difficult 

educational challenges comparable to those facing Chicago and Illinois. The first purpose of the 

series is to conduct shared inquiry together, across important educational constituencies, into 

what Illinois and Chicago must do to improve student learning outcomes for all students at all 

levels of our educational system, from birth to graduate school.  The second purpose of this 

conference is to support action. The point of our shared inquiry is not simply to answer 

questions—it is to support organizational and cross-organizational teams in taking strategic, 

collective steps toward action that makes a difference in student learning in Illinois schools. For 

more information to guide you as you select the focus of your proposal, please review the 

content of our first two colloquium sessions, as well as a wealth of other relevant resources, 

found on our website at worldclasseducationillinois.org.    

 

PURPOSE OF THE GRANT   

The central purpose of this mini-grant opportunity is to provide resources for organizations to 

work alone or in collaboration with others to develop strategic plans that reflect ―lessons 

learned‖ from the Colloquium Series--and to begin, at least, the implementation phase.   

 

TIMELINE 

 Proposal Submission Date:  Monday, February 20, 2011 

 Mini-Grant Awards announced to recipients Wednesday, March 15, 2012 

 Mini-Grant Awards announced to UIC World Class Education Colloquium participants  

Monday, April 2, 2012 at the third and final session of the colloquium 

 Awardees will be asked to make brief presentations on their plans at the April 2 session 

 Length of Grant Period – Six months:  April 2-October 2, 2012 

 Final invoices from awardees due Friday, November 2, 2012 

 

 



 2 

 

PROPOSAL CONTENT GUIDELINES 

The international speakers and local panelists from the first two Colloquia have emphasized what 

they view as major issues interfering with attainment of ―world class‖ student learning outcomes 

in the United States. The first two sessions have shown that the educational reform agendas in 

successful countries are different in significant ways from reform strategies currently in process 

in the United States.  These reform agendas in other nations have emphasized systemic 

approaches to educational improvement, developing schools as high quality professional 

workplaces, and (re)thinking broadly and deeply about the learning outcomes we want for our 

students. 

 

To determine the project you will propose, you may wish to: 

 Review the attached reminders of some of the key insights that our speakers have 

shared with us in the colloquium series. The Colloquium website at 

worldclasseducationillinois.org will give you more complete accounts of their 

presentations and a range of related world-class education perspectives. 

 Become as familiar as possible with the current policies and practices in the U.S., 

Illinois, and Chicago that relate to the topic you/your organization is most interested 

in addressing.  The Colloquium website provides assistance in locating those policies 

and practices. 

 Determine your project topic based on your interests as well as the impact you believe 

your organization may have on educational change now and in the future. 

 

TECHNICAL GUIDELINES 

Please complete Sections 1 through 8 below (―Grant Seeking Organization‖ through ―Budget‖). 

Briefly fill in the boxes provided for each of the eight sections with your proposal text.  There is 

no page minimum but clarity is expected.  Please do not exceed 5 single-spaced pages 

altogether—this is a mini-grant so let’s keep the proposals ―mini‖ as well (but please use 12 

point font!).  

 

1. GRANT-SEEKING ORGANIZATION 

Proposal applicants may work collaboratively with other organizations.  However, due to 

funding processing restrictions, one lead organization must be identified. The collaborating 

organization, if applicable, should be identified in the project description, including its roles and 

projected costs.  The lead organization must be willing to submit appropriate invoices on the 

partnering organization’s behalf and forward payment to the partner organization.  Lead 

organizations may also, of course, work with other organizations willing to volunteer at no 

additional cost toward completion of the awarded organization’s project.   

 

 

 Official Name of Your Organization 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 Head of the organization; Name, Position, Contact information (email and phone) 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 Address of the organization 

_______________________________________________________________________ 



 3 

 Person who will manage the project; Name, Position, Contact information (email, phone) 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

2.  OVERALL PROJECT PURPOSES & SCOPE 

State the Colloquium themes or lessons that inspired this project, the short-term outcomes you 

expect, and the longer-term outcomes you intend.  Include who will be affected by your plans 

and actions and how. 

 

 

 

 

3. PROJECT DESCRIPTION in 100 words or less 

In no more than one page, please provide an overall description of the work and processes of the 

initiative, including strategies, methods, protocols (instruments, surveys, other communications 

to be used in executing the project).  Indicate collaborators and their roles, and a plan for 

documenting and sharing lessons or findings. 

 

 

 

 

4. SPECIFIC GOALS AND OUTCOMES 

Please list specific project goals and expected outcomes.  The S.M.A.R.T. approach is often 

helpful in drafting clear goals and objectives (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Realistic, and 

Timely).  More information on S.M.A.R.T. is available at http://topachievement.com/smart.html.   

 

 

 

 

5. TARGET AUDIENCE 

Briefly describe the people who will be the subject of your project.  Please indicate why they/this 

group has been selected and how this selection furthers the goals and objectives of the project.  

How will you reach this target audience and others through service delivery, advocacy, outreach, 

and other communications? 

 

 

 

 

6. IMPACT AND OUTCOMES EVALUATION  

How will you know whether the initiative accomplished the short- and long-term outcomes you 

identified above?  Describe how your organization will, beyond the short life of the grant, collect 

evidence that the project was implemented as intended and that the impact of the implementation 

is meeting your goals.   

 

 



 4 

7. DELIVERABLES 

Final report: The purpose of the final report is primarily to inform other participants in the 

Colloquium Series about your initiative and its progress, so it will be posted on the 

worldclasseducationillinois.org website. Specifications for the final report will be shared with 

awardees:  The reports will be brief but descriptive! 

 

 

 

8. BUDGET 

All resources, personnel and non-personnel, needed to implement the proposed project should be 

accounted for in the budget section with projected costs identified for each person/item. This is a 

mini-grant, so your budget need not be extensive; but please provide as many details as possible 

about you plan to use the funds requested.  

 

Please note:   Due to UIC accounting restrictions, grants will be awarded to successful recipients 

through a reimbursement process.  Invoices for project-incurred costs may be submitted at 

monthly, quarterly, or bi-annual intervals or at the conclusion of the project but within the 

invoice submission deadline of Friday, November 2, 2012.   

 

 

 

 

GRANT AWARDS SELECTION CRITERIA 

 

Grants will be awarded according to the following criteria: 

1. Proposal’s adherence to all guidelines and requirements stated in the RFP and to the 

Colloquium Series Theme:  World Class Education Birth to 20 

2. Clarity and internal consistency of proposal objectives, strategies, and budgeted resources 

3. Proposal’s likelihood of making an eventual contribution to improving student outcomes 

in Pre-K-12 and post-secondary learning  

 

GRANT AWARDS SELECTION PROCESS 

A panel of representatives from the UIC College of Education and other Chicago and State 

organizations not applying for funds will select proposals to be awarded. Upon request, specific 

feedback on unsuccessful grant requests will be provided to individual applicants.   

 

SUBMISSION PROCESS  

Please email your completed proposal to Dr. Martha M. Hebert, Project Manager, at 

mhebert@uic.edu by Monday, March 12, 2012. 

 

CONTACTS 

For further information and to answer any questions you may have about the UIC World Class 

Education Colloquium Mini-Grant Request for Proposals, you may contact UIC Project 

Manager Martha Hebert at mhebert@uic.edu.  

 

 



 
 
 

Legislative Education Institute - 2012 
 

 
Background  
In 2011, the Illinois General Assembly passed groundbreaking reforms related to teacher and principal 
evaluation.  In 2012, the Joint Committee on Administrative Rules (JCAR) will endorse rules and the General 
Assembly will set the funding level for this and other critical human capital work in the state.  In order to 
prepare legislators for this work and build on momentum related to teacher and principal evaluation from the 
previous three years, the P-20 Council and Advance Illinois will collaborate with others to sponsor a Legislative 
Education Institute.  The event will feature a nationally-recognized speaker on evaluation, offer classroom-
level insight from the Consortium on Chicago School Research, and provide time for open discussion with 
these experts.  
 
Collaborators 
The Illinois P-20 Council, the Education Caucus, Legislative Education Committee Chairpersons, and Advance 
Illinois will collaborate to organize the event. 
 
Goals 
With the ultimate goal of building even stronger support from General Assembly members for high quality 
teacher and principal evaluation work, the Institute has three key objectives:    

 To build a deeper understanding of the need for teacher support of which evaluation is a part, and to 
convey the importance of a focus on human capital to organization success 

 To bring legislators up to date on a broad array of research and thinking related to teacher evaluation 
from around the state, the country and the world 

 To promote discussions of current and potential legislative activity related to evaluation 
 
Participants 
Approximately 90 people will be invited to the event.  Invitees will include House and Senate Education 
Committee members, and members of relevant Appropriations Committees. Invitations will also be extended 
to the leadership team and board at the Governor’s Office, the Illinois State Board of Education, the Board of 
Higher Education, the Community College Board, P-20 Council members, the Department of Human Services, 
and the Illinois Department of Employment Security.  In addition, invitations will be extended to ten 
superintendents from districts served by Education Committee members and a representative from each 
Education Caucus member organization.  
 
Structure and Topics for Institute 
The Institute will occur on the evening of Monday, April 16th in Springfield from 5:30pm to 9pm and include 
dinner and drinks.  The institute will focus on educator evaluation and feature presentations by Charlotte 
Danielson and a staff member at the Consortium on Chicago School Research (CCSR).  Ms. Danielson will speak 
about the purposes of teacher evaluation, the nature of professional learning, and challenges of 
implementation.  She will also offer a blueprint for effective teacher evaluation in Illinois.  A staff member 
from CCSR will explain lessons learned from their recent report summarizing findings of a Chicago Public 
Schools teacher evaluation pilot study.  
 


	P-20-Agenda-01.24.12.pdf
	P20-DRAFTminutes-10.26.11
	P-20_Council Annual Report Presentation 01.24.12
	P-20 Annual Report 2012 1-23-12 DRAFT
	JELC Committee Report DRAFT 01 23 12
	ESEA Flexibility Waiver Request Stakeholder Meeting Schedule
	P-20 Mtg RTT3 Update Presentation
	IL Pathways Flyer
	IDES p20 presentation
	Local P-20 1 24 12
	Lt Governor Comm College Fact Sheet -  Focus on the Finish Final
	UIC WCEC Mini Grant Keynote Highlights
	UIC WCEC Mini Grant RFP
	Legislative Education Institute Updated 01.19.12

